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Item 1. BUSINESS

 
Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward Looking Statements 
 

This Annual Report includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”). These statements are based on management’s beliefs and assumptions, and on information currently available to
management. Forward-looking statements include the information concerning possible or assumed future results of operations of the
Company set forth under the heading “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition or Plan of Operation.” Forward-
looking statements also include statements in which words such as “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“consider” or similar expressions are used.

 
Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. They involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions.

The Company's future results and shareholder values may differ materially from those expressed in these forward-looking
statements. Readers are cautioned not to put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements.

 
Corporate History

 
Premier Holding Corporation (“Premier” or the “Company”) provides deregulated energy services to its clients including the

sale of lower cost power, fixed energy costs and energy efficient products that range from complete indoor and outdoor lighting
arrays. The Company anticipates adding additional services lines including proprietary lighting solutions to energy efficient motors
and chillers for HVAC and refrigeration in the future.

 
Premier was incorporated in Nevada on October 18, 1971. Premier’s fiscal year end is December 31. Premier has never

been in bankruptcy, receivership or any similar proceeding, but has been the subject of a custodianship proceeding in the Nevada
state courts.

 
Premier was originally organized under the name of Mr. Nevada, Inc., and following the completion of a limited public offering

in April 1972 commenced limited operations which were discontinued in 1990. Thereafter, Premier engaged in reorganization and, on
several occasions, sought to merge with or acquire certain active private companies or operations, all of which were terminated or
resulted in discontinued negotiations. On October 20, 1995, Premier changed its name to Intermark Development Corporation. On
November 4, 1996, Premier acquired all of the capital stock of HVM Development Limited ("HDL"), formerly known as OVM
Development Limited, a British Virgin Islands corporation, and changed its name to OVM International Holding Corporation.

 
Premier stopped filing reports under the federal securities laws in November 2002. Premier lost its Nevada corporate charter

in 2006 for failure to file an Annual List of its officers and directors with the Secretary of the State of Nevada. On November 1, 2006,
Premier’s corporate charter was revoked by the Secretary of State of Nevada. Thereupon, the resident agent of Premier in Nevada
resigned for non-payment of fees.

 
On May 8, 2007, the Nevada Court entered a default judgment, appointing Jeffrey Volpe as custodian of Premier under NRS

78.347(2). On May 9, 2007, Jeffrey Volpe, as custodian of Premier, appointed himself as the sole officer and director of Premier, and
Premier’s charter was restored. On May 18, 2007, Dr. Jack Gregory was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Director and
Jasmine Gregory was appointed as Secretary/Treasurer and Director of Premier. At that time, Jeffrey Volpe resigned as an officer
and director. There are no relationships between Dr. Gregory and Mr. Volpe, nor are there any relationships between Jasmine
Gregory and Mr. Volpe.

 
On September 11, 2008, Premier’s registration under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange

Act”), was revoked pursuant to Section 12 (j) of the Exchange Act for failure to file periodic reports as required by Section 12(g) of the
Exchange Act and trading of Premier’s common stock on the pink sheets was suspended. Premier has re-registered its common
stock under the Exchange Act and, after successfully filing a Form 15c2-11, has once again obtained a quotation for its common
stock. Premier stock is now quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board with the symbol PRHL.

 
Our Businesses

 
In December 2011, Premier acquired assets from WePower, LLC, a Delaware LLC and Green Central Holdings, Inc. a

Nevada Corp.  Premier also formed WePower Ecolutions, Inc. a Delaware corporation (“Ecolutions”), as a wholly-owned subsidiary,
and began to offer clean energy products and services to commercial markets and developers and management companies of large-
scale residential developments.  Premier appointed Kevin Donovan the Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Board of
Directors of Ecolutions on February 22, 2012 to establish the energy services business. On February 22, 2012 Mr. Donovan was
appointed CEO and President. 
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In October 2012, Premier divested itself of an underperforming business line which were acquired by a newly formed entity

known as WePowerEco Corp, created by the outgoing management team including Mr. Donovan. Premier’s incoming management
team, led by its new Chief Executive Officer Randall Letcavage, negotiated the sale of the product line and prospects with
WePowerEco Corp. in exchange for an unsecured promissory note in the face amount of $5,000,000. The product line and prospects
have been valued at $869,000.  In connection with the sale of the product line and prospects, Premier agreed not to compete with
WePower Eco Corp’s solar and wind products for a period of two years following the sale. In addition, Premier agreed to the prior
management team using the WePower name in a newly formed company separate from Premier.

 
In 2012, Premier acquired a unique technology for energy efficient lighting, the E-Series controller, developed by Active ES.

This patented technology provides an upgrade for existing HID lamps for high-bay indoor and outdoor applications where other
existing options for efficiency are few, expensive, and untested. Premier made available this technology to its subsidiary Ecolutions.

Thereafter, Ecolutions changed its name to Energy Efficient Experts (E3). In the fourth quarter, Premier redesigned and reengineered
its products for mass production and expanding the product line. This redesign means that the product can go from custom made to

mass production and rapid installation. Also in the fourth quarter, Premier formed a strategic alliance with Muni-Fed Energy, LLC, a
California LLC, who has strong relationships with Municipalities, Ports, and real estate investment trusts in the Southern California
market and beyond.  Premier also formalized its relationship with Orion Energy of Southern California, giving Premier access to a
large product offering in lighting and energy controls. 

 
On February 28, 2013, Premier acquired an 80% ownership interest in “The Power Company USA, LLC” (“TPC”), a

deregulated power broker in Illinois.  On the date of acquisition, TPC had over 14,000 clients, and has been adding between 1,000
and 2,000 clients per month.  A portion of these clients have large commercial/industrial facilities such as warehouses and distribution
center.

 
Our Industry

 
Premier bridges two industries in the Energy field: Deregulation (reselling power from suppliers) and energy efficiency

technologies. Deregulated power is expected to be one of the largest markets since the deregulation of telecom, only much larger.
Energy efficiency companies, sometimes referred to as energy services companies, or ESCOs, develop, install and arrange financing
for projects designed to improve the energy efficiency of client facilities. Typical products and services offered by energy efficiency
companies include lighting and lighting retrofits, HVAC upgrades, motor controls, equipment installations, load management, and can
include power generation including on-site cogeneration, renewable energy plants, etc. As Premier grows it expects to be involved in
all these opportunities. Energy efficiency companies often offer their products and services through energy savings performance
contracts, or ESPCs. Under these contracts, energy efficiency companies assume certain responsibilities for the performance of the
installed measures, under assumed conditions, for a portion of the project’s economic lifetime. Premier and its affiliates operate as a
deregulated power reseller an as an ESCO.

 
Marketing

 
Premier’s sales and marketing strategy captures the unique opportunity of being in two closely related, but separate

industries. Through The Power Company, the company will reach approximately 50,000 consumers a year for deregulated power. A
portion of these (the commercial/industrial customers) will also be candidates for the Efficiency industry. The Power Company, as it

becomes integrated with E3, will help E3 gain the ability to cross market its product line to their already existing client base of
thousands of new commercial/industrial prospects.  This provides an advantage over the competition by offering a complete clean
energy solution package of a much lower cost of power and, by the use of its energy efficiency products, the reduction of their
consumption of energy.

 
In addition to these valuable clients from TPC, the company’s strategy is to approach large and qualified prospects through a

network of resellers and alliance partners with pre-existing relationships and/or top-tier reputations in their respective markets (as
well as direct sales as described below), and to offer their clientele customized and comprehensive energy efficiency solutions
tailored to meet their economic, operational and efficiency goals.

 
Throughout the industry the evaluation, proposal, sales, and implementation process for energy efficiency and renewable

energy projects can typically take from 12 to 24 months or longer, due to the prescriptive nature of a consultative sale. Sales to state

and federal governmental and housing authority customers tend to require the longest lead time. E3 identifies direct-sales
opportunities through the pre-existing relationships of its team, as well as referrals, requests for proposals, conferences, web
searches, telemarketing and additional product/service sales to existing customers.

 

E3 also supports its network of resellers with a wide range of energy efficiency products through its alliance with suppliers, as

well as its growing list of proprietary products. E3 not only provides products at a very competitive rate, but supports its resellers
through training, marketing material, team sales visits, and a sales support infrastructure that can reduce the typical sales cycle time.
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Lead qualification has been automated such that a prospect can be evaluated over the phone, reducing the expense of

performing audits and surveys on unqualified prospects. As the business develops we expect the audits will be performed by qualified
sales engineers, typically LEED certified (Leaders in Energy Efficiency Design, a program under the US Department of Energy’s
Green Building Council) and/or certified electricians, which results in a more comprehensive, professional, accurate and competitive
proposal. The Company and its resellers utilize trained and certified electricians and engineers to perform the installation, further
increasing customer satisfaction. Follow-up reports verify energy savings performance. The Company also has access to funding
options which can meet the unique financial requirement of the client, including no-money down, and immediately cash-flow-positive
programs.
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Employees

 
As of December 31, 2013, Premier’s senior management consisted of three independent contractors along with additional

contracted support staff and independent resellers and consultants. Premier expects to hire additional personnel as its business
expands.

 
Patents

 
Premier acquired all patents owned by Active ES Lighting Controls; the three pertinent US patents are as follows:
 

Ÿ U.S. Patent No. 5,528,110; Entitled Apparatus For Control Of Load Power Consumption; Issued June 18, 1996
 

Ÿ U.S. Patent No. 5,508,589; Entitled Power Saving Voltage Reduction System For High Intensity Discharge Lighting
Systems; Issued April 16, 1996

 
Ÿ U.S. Patent No. 5,623,186; Entitled Power Saving Voltage Reduction System For High Intensity Discharge Lighting

Systems; Issued April 22, 1997
 

Ÿ U.S. Patent No. 7,084,587; Entitled Apparatus And Method For Control Of High Intensity Discharge Lighting; Issued
August 1, 2006;

 
Ÿ U.S. Patent No. 7,825,614; Entitled Voltage Control Load Center, Modular Voltage Control Transformer Circuit, And

Method Of Making And Using; Issued November 2, 2010; and
 

Ÿ U.S. Patent No. 7,973,490; Entitled Hid Lighting Control With Transient Voltage Sensing And Lamp Restarting, And
Method Of Making And Using; Issued July 5, 2011.

 
International Patents

 
Title Country/Type Filing Date Status

Apparatus & Method For Control Of High Intensity Discharge
Lighting

India 8/26/05 Published

(Same) Canada 8/26/05 Issued: 07/20/2010
No: 2,577,416

(Same) Israel 8/26/05 Pending
(Same) Japan 8/26/05 Pending
(Same) Mexico 8/26/05 Issued: 11/18/2009

Pending
(Same) Egypt 8/26/05 Pending
Voltage Control Load Center Modular Voltage Control
Transformer Circuit & Method Of Making & Using

Egypt 9/21/08 Pending

(Same) India 9/18/08 Pending
(Same) Indonesia 3/20/07 Pending
(Same) Japan 3/20/07 Pending
(Same) Mexico 3/20/07 Issued: 12/06/2010

No: 281748
(Same) Malaysia 3/20/07 Pending

 
These patents pertain to the E-Series Lighting controls line of products.
 

Government Regulation
 
Various regulations affect the conduct of Premier’s business. The applicable regulatory requirements differ in each state and

between agencies of the federal government.
 
Premier’s projects must conform to all applicable electric reliability, building and safety, and environmental regulations and

codes, which vary from place to place and time to time. Various federal, state, provincial and local permits are required to construct an
energy efficiency project or renewable energy plant.
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Some of the demand reduction services that Premier provides for utilities and institutional clients are subject to regulatory

tariffs imposed under federal and state utility laws. In addition, the operation of, and electrical interconnection for, Premier’s
renewable energy projects are subject to federal, state or provincial interconnection and federal reliability standards also set forth in
utility tariffs. These tariffs specify rules, business practices and economic terms to which Premier is subject. The tariffs are drafted by
the utilities and approved by the utilities’ state, provincial or federal regulatory commissions.
 
Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

 
Premier is subject to various risks which may materially harm its business, financial condition and results of operations. Any

investor should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below and the other information in this filing. If any of these
risks or uncertainties actually occurs, Premier’s business, financial condition or operating results could be materially harmed. In that
case, the price of Premier’s common stock could decline and investors could lose all or part of their investment.

 
Premier is a relatively young company with limited operating history.

 
Because Premier is a relatively young company, it is difficult to evaluate its business and prospects. Premier’s future

operating results will depend on many factors, including the ability to generate sustained and increased demand and acceptance of
its products, the level of its competition, and its ability to attract and maintain key management and employees. While management
believes their estimates of projected occurrences and events are within the timetable of Premier’s business plan, there can be no
guarantees or assurances that the results anticipated will occur.

 
If we are unable to attract and retain key personnel, we may not be able to compete effectively in our market.

 
Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to attract and retain key management, design experts, and sales and

marketing personnel. Our inability to retain employees and attract and retain sufficient additional employees, and design, drafting, and
marketing support resources, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows. The loss of key personnel could limit our ability to develop and market our products.

 
Premier Expects to incur net losses in future quarters.

 
If Premier does not achieve profitability, Premier’s business may not grow or operate. Premier may not achieve sufficient

revenues or profitability in any future period. Premier will need to generate revenues from the sales of its products or take steps to
reduce operating costs to achieve and maintain profitability. Even if Premier is able to generate revenues, Premier cannot be certain
that it can sustain or increase profitability on a quarterly or annual basis.

 
Premier will likely need to raise funds to operate in accordance with its business plan.

 
Premier is a growing its businesses and as a result it is likely that they will need additional cash to support that growth, both to

support operating losses as long as those continue, as well for the potential acquisition of other companies, or the purchase of certain
assets from other companies. At this time the Company cannot estimate either the amount of cash required or the form that it will
attempt to raise this cash.
 
Our independent registered public accounting firm has expressed doubts about our ability to continue as a going concern.
 

The report of Premier’s independent accountants on its December 31, 2013 financial statements included an explanatory
paragraph indicating that there is substantial doubt about Premier’s ability to continue as a going concern due to recurring losses and
working capital shortages. Premier’s ability to continue as a going concern will be determined by its ability to obtain funding and
develop a profitable operation. Premier’s financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of
this uncertainty.

 
Premier does not expect to pay dividends for the foreseeable future.

 
For the foreseeable future, it is anticipated that earnings, if any, that may be generated from Premier’s operations will be used

to finance its operations and cash dividends will not be paid to holders of Premier’s common stock. Premier expects to be subject to
SEC regulations and changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, new SEC regulations and other trading market rules which are creating uncertainty for public
companies.

 
Premier is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance and public disclosure. As a result, Premier

intends to invest appropriate resources to comply with evolving standards, and this investment may result in increased general and
administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from revenue-generating activities to compliance
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Premier’s Common Stock May Be Affected by Limited Trading Volume and May Fluctuate Significantly.

 
In the future, Premier’s common stock is likely to experience significant price and volume fluctuations which could adversely

affect the market price of its common stock without regard to its operating performance. In addition, Premier believes that factors such
as quarterly fluctuations in its financial results and changes in the overall economy or the condition of the financial markets could
cause the price of its common stock to fluctuate substantially. Substantial fluctuations in Premier’s stock price could significantly
reduce the price of its common stock.

 
Premier has not had Adequate Financial Controls in Place Which Could Adversely Effect the Financial Reporting.
 

Premier has not had adequate financial controls in place in the past, which has resulted in errors in its financial statements. If
this happens again, investors may not be in possession of up to date and accurate financial information. Premier has hired an
experienced financial consultant to assist in production of all futures financial statements and public filings. Premier plans to further
strengthen financial controls by implementing an independent board of directors once Premier has resources to do so.

 
As required by Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act, Premier is required to carry out evaluations, under the supervision and

with the participation of Premier’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness
of Premier’s disclosure controls and procedures every quarter.

 
In designing and evaluating Premier’s disclosure controls and procedures, Premier recognizes that there are inherent

limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the
circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only
provide reasonable assurance of achieving their desired control objectives. Additionally, in evaluating and implementing possible
controls and procedures, Premier’s management is required to apply its reasonable judgment.
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Item 2. PROPERTIES

 
Premier’s corporate offices and warehouse are located at 1382 Valencia Avenue, Unit F, Tustin, California. Premier considers

these facilities to be adequate for its current needs. These offices consist of 2,000 square feet, we pay rent of $2,500 on a month to
month basis.
 

For the operations of The Power Company we rent 2,000 square feet of office space at 214 W. Ohio St, Chicago, IL for
$4,000 per month. This lease expires in July 2015.
 

For the operations of TPC we rent 1,451 square feet of office space at 6600 York Rd, Baltimore, MD for $2,200 per month.
The lease expires April 2017.

 
Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

 
Whitaker Energy, LLC
 

In 2013, Whitaker Energy, LLC (“WE”) filed a civil action the Superior Court of Dekalb County, State of Georgia, Case No. 13-
CV8610-6, against The Power Company, USA, LLC and Premier Holding Company alleging that TPC is in default under its
obligations to WE under a promissory note pursuant to which WE loaned TPC $150,000 in 2012 concurrent with WE’s purchase of a
membership interest in TPC. Under the terms of the loan between TPC and WE, TPC owes a monthly payment to WE, the amount of
which varies each month and is based on the number of contracts TPC enters into from door-to-door sales and call centers. TPC and
WE dispute the number of contracts entered into by TPC after certain adjustments and charge-backs from cancellation of contracts by
consumers. Under the complaint, WE seeks to recover $93,080 of principal under the loan, plus prejudgment interest in the amount of
$9,184 and reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses of the litigation. Also, WE seeks an order from the court for access to TPC’s
books and records. TPC and Premier Holding Corporation dispute the claim by WE that TPC is in default under the loan between
TPE and WE. The parties to the litigation have been negotiating a settlement of the litigation which would include a monthly payment
by TPC to WE of $4,000 in payment of the principal due and certain attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by WE. Under the terms of the
settlement, WE seeks to recover a total of $110,000.
 
Hi-Tech Specialists, Inc.
 

Prior to its acquisition by The Power Company, Hi-Tech Specialists, Inc. filed suit against U.S.E.C. LLC d/b/a/ US Energy
Consultants and Michail Skachko concerning the parties’ agreement seeking damages in an amount in excess of $789,077. The
nature of the litigation relates to a contract between the parties wherein Hi-Tech Specialists was to solicit service agreements on
behalf of U.S.E.C. The suit is on going and The Power Company is aggressively pursuing its claim against the parties named.
 
Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

 
Not applicable.
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PART II

 
Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES

 
Market Information

 
Premier's common stock is listed and quoted on the over-the-counter Bulletin Board and OTCQB under the symbol PRHL.

The following quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not represent actual
transactions.

 
 

  High   Low  
Year ended December 31, 2012         
First Quarter  $ 1.30  $ 0.50 
Second Quarter  $ 1.46  $ 0.40 
Third Quarter  $ 1.30  $ 0.10 
Fourth Quarter  $ 0.21  $ 0.07 
Year ended December 31, 2013         
First Quarter  $ 0.25  $ 0.07 
Second Quarter  $ 0.12  $ 0.06 
Third Quarter  $ 0.25  $ 0.08 
Fourth Quarter  $ 0.25  $ 0.14 

 
On April 11, 2014, the closing sales price of our common stock as reported on the OTCQB was $0.15 per share.  As of

December 31, 2013, there were 148,003,328 shares of common stock issued and outstanding which are held by approximately 910
holders of record.

 
Dividends

 
Premier’s Board of Directors has not declared a cash dividend on its common stock during the last two fiscal years.
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4. The broker or dealer who has affected sales of penny stock to a customer, unless exempted by the rules, is required to

send to the customer a written statement containing the identity and number of shares or units of each such security and the
estimated market value of the security. The imposition of these reporting and disclosure requirements on a broker or dealer make it
unlawful for the broker or dealer to effect transactions in penny stocks on behalf of customers. Brokers or dealers may be
discouraged from dealing in penny stocks, due to the additional time, responsibility involved, and, as a result, this may have a
deleterious effect on the market for Premier's stock.
 
Sales of Unregistered Securities
 

From October 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013, the Company granted 3,530,606 shares of common stock to various
consultants for services. A compensation expense of $572,147 was recorded during the period ended December 31, 2013.

 
From October 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013, the Company entered into a series of stock purchase agreements with

accredited investors for the sale of 10,085,271 shares of its common stock. The sales closed and cash of $1,016,560 was received.
There was no underwriter, no underwriting discounts or commissions, no general solicitation, no advertisement, and resale
restrictions were imposed by placing a Rule 144 legend on the certificates. The persons who received securities have such
knowledge in business and financial matters that he/she/it is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the transaction. This
transaction was exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, based upon Section 4(2) for transactions by the issuer not
involving any public offering.
 
Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

 
The registrant is a smaller reporting company, pursuant to Rule 229.10(f)(1), and is not required to report this information.

The financial statements of Premier are attached.
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 
This discussion summarizes the significant factors affecting our consolidated operating results, consolidated financial condition,
liquidity and cash flows for the periods ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. The discussion and analysis that follows should be read
together with the consolidated financial statements and the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
report. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results Of Operations is provided as a supplement to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and footnotes to help provide an understanding of our financial condition, the
changes in our financial condition and our results of operations. Except for historical information, the matters discussed in this
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Consolidated Financial Condition and Results of Consolidated Operations are forward
looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties and are based upon judgments concerning various factors that are beyond our
control. Our actual results could differ materially from the results anticipated in any forward-looking statements as a result of a variety
of factors, including those discussed in Section 1A above – “Risk Factors.”
 
Overview

 
Premier Holding Corporation, a Nevada corporation (“Premier” or “PRHL” or the “Company”), provides deregulated energy

services to its clients including the sale of lower cost power, fixed energy costs and energy efficient products that range from complete
indoor and outdoor lighting arrays. The Company anticipates adding additional services lines including proprietary lighting solutions to
energy efficient motors and chillers for HVAC and refrigeration in the future.

 
Premier provides solutions that enable customers to reduce their energy consumption, lower their operating and maintenance

costs, and realize environmental benefits. Our comprehensive set of services includes competitive electricity plans and upgrades to a
facility’s energy infrastructure.

 
In addition to organic growth, strategic acquisitions of complementary businesses and assets have been an important part of

our historical development. Since inception, Premier has completed certain acquisitions which have enabled us to broaden our
service offerings and expand our geographical reach.

 
In 2012, Premier acquired a unique marquee technology for energy efficient lighting, the E-Series controller developed by

Active ES. This patented technology provides an upgrade for existing HID lamps for high-bay indoor and outdoor applications where

the other current options for efficiency are few, expensive, and untested. This technology is being marketed by E3.
 
In the fourth quarter of 2012, Premier performed additional research and development to the products from Active ES adding

two new products for mass production, the 480 volt version of the controller, suitable for ports and other large facilities, and a 240 volt

version of the LiteOwl for Streetlights, vastly increasing the applicable market. Also in the fourth quarter, Premier formed a strategic
alliance with Muni-Fed Energy who has strong relationships with municipalities, ports, and real estate investment trusts in the
southern California and national market. 

 
In the first quarter of 2013, Premier acquired an 80% stake in The Power Company, a deregulated power broker in Illinois.  By

the end of that quarter, The Power Company had over 14,000 clients, and has been adding between 1,000 and 3,000 clients per
month (closing third quarter 2013 with 40,000 clients).  Over 1,000 of these clients have large commercial/industrial facilities such as

warehouses and distribution center, which are candidates for E3.
 
The Power Company's business model is to acquire commercial and residential clients who benefit from the law passed

allowing for competition in the energy markets, known as the deregulation of energy. In many cases TPC saves its clients 10-30% on
their energy bills by simply switching suppliers, all while the enrollee remains a client of their local utility (local utility continues to read
meter, bill and service any interruptions). TPC is different than several of its competitors in that is has agreements with multiple
energy suppliers allowing TPC to leverage its standing in the marketplace to garner competitive pricing for its clients by having its
suppliers compete for their client's business. Currently, TPC has access to over 30 different suppliers and most of the agreements in
place allow for TPC to be paid for the life of the client’s tenure with the supplier. TPC is garnering its clients through strategic
partnerships, trained in-house commercial and door-to-door residential agents and call centers. TPC has launched its online client
portal dubbed NEST (National Energy Service Transactor). This sophisticated portal enables rapid, efficient and secure sales
transactions of deregulated power. NEST is designed to enable sales agents whether from a computer terminal, a smart phone, or
any web browser to access the pertinent information on a particular prospect. Agents can view their clients’ energy profiles and
quickly access the energy options available to them. The transparency and ease of NEST allows TPC’s agents to select the best
power provider for their customers and process the paperwork online in real-time, which enables client acquisition in minutes. This
sales portal enables large-scale, rapid sales of deregulated power, as yet unseen in the industry.

 
For its competitive electricity services, Premier provides innovative and risk-mitigating energy products and solutions to North

American wholesale and retail customers. Premier strives to serve its’ customers with diverse products and solutions to meet their
energy needs.
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In executing this strategy, Premier leverages its core strengths of maintaining and growing strong and diverse supply

relationships with retail and wholesale customers, and integrating its expertise in managing physical and financial risks.
 
2013 Activities

 
TPC launched its online energy portal NEST on schedule. NEST is built for scalability so that it can be monetized on its own,

meaning it can be offered to any deregulated power company as its sales tool. The technology also provides sales management,
reporting, verification, and compliance tracking to a degree not seen in the industry to date.
 

E3 and its growing reseller base have prospected a large number of qualified sales candidates as well as over a dozen
strategic partners including Energy Auditors, suppliers, installers, sales organizations and funding sources. These suppliers
exponentially increased the number of the product offerings mostly in the LED and other lighting field. The installers not only bring a

technical expertise in the implementation of solutions E3 provides its customers but they also bring their list of client’s and an
introduction, and the various funding sources can provide financing to meet client’s needs from short-term loans, leases to PACE
funding.

 
Premier completed strategic alliances with Norcal Reps, a national sales rep organization and Western Glass, providing

efficiency technology to its 8,000 customers and introducing E3 to these customers. In addition, Premier has acquired the resources
of AEON Green Energy Solutions by means of an exclusive employment agreement with its founder, Lenard Tercenio, including its
strategic alliances, sales agents, manufacturer, finance and auditor relationships, as well as its client base and pipeline estimated to
be worth $2,000,000 in sales in the ensuing 12 months.

 

E3 is finding success in recruiting LED resellers whose clients have declined an LED sale (mostly on a performance or
personal preference basis) and going back to those clients and offering the E-Series technology as a solution for their existing (and
preferred) HID lighting. This includes auto dealerships, warehouses, and parking structures, etc.

 
The energy services business has contributed a small amount of revenues to our overall financial performance as of the

period ended December 31, 2013, as the sales cycles for these large projects can be very long. Premier has seen closed sales with a
municipality and very large proposals to large prospects such as ports, municipalities, big box stores, and fortune 500 companies.

 
Strategy and Outlook

 
 Ÿ Expanding activities in deregulated energy markets through strategic partners. Premier continues to focus on building sales

channels through strategic partners that either have, or have access to significant customers to which Premier can offer
competitive electricity rates.
 

 Ÿ Creating and leveraging sales leads from TPC’s deregulated sales efforts to drive sales opportunities for the demand
management business. As TPC continues to build its commercial and business customer base, it informs these customers
that in addition to financial savings that they can achieve through the negotiation of more competitive electricity rates, Energy

Efficiency Experts (“E3”) can also provide energy savings through the installation of lighting, and other building envelope
technologies.
 

 Ÿ Focusing on building channel sales partners for E3. Premier has established strategic partners in key growth markets that
advocate and introduce our lighting and related demand management technologies to their customer base. Premier intends
to continue to build and develop these channel partnerships both domestically and internationally.
 

 Ÿ Remaining technology and supplier independent. Premier believes that it can best serve our customers by maintaining
independent in both our supplier and technology partnerships, which enables us to focus on providing the most appropriate
and effective solution to meet our customers’ needs and financial objectives.
 

 Ÿ Provide funding sources to enable our clients to adopt new technology. Premier believes it can offer a wide range of funding
options which will allow its’ clients to structure the finances to best suit their needs. From 100% no money down, to straight

purchases, E3 has available to it a number of strategic financial partners and programs to facilitate a quick sale. In addition,
the Company has resources to maximize tax credits and incentives for Premier’s clients.
 

Known Trends and Uncertainties Affecting Our Business
 
Market Volatility. Management believes that the market for energy efficiency will continue to grow, and Premier will increase

penetration in this market, and that revenue will continue to increase over time. Continued fiscal uncertainty has and may continue to
contribute to a lengthening of our sales cycle for both municipal and commercial customers.
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Long and Variable Selling Cycle for E3 Business. The sales, design and implementation process for energy efficiency projects
can take from several months to 36 months. Existing and potential customers generally follow extended budgeting and procurement
processes, and sometimes must engage in regulatory approval processes. This extended sales process requires the dedication of
significant time by sales and management personnel and the use of significant financial resources, with no certainty of success or
recovery of related expenses. All of these factors can contribute to fluctuations in quarterly financial performance and increase the
likelihood that operating results in any particular quarter may fall below investor expectations.

 
Revenue
 

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $1,804,980 compared to zero for the year ended December 31, 2012.
The increase was due to the acquisition of The Power Company in 2013.

 
Cost of Goods Sold

 
Cost of goods sold for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $39,214 compared to zero for the year ended December 31,

2012. The increase was due to products sold by E3 in 2013. Revenue generated by The Power Company had no costs of goods sold.
 
Selling, general and administrative expenses

 
Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $6,955,779, compared to

$1,357,165 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in expenses during 2013 was mainly due to an increase of
expenses of $2,754,124 related to the operations of The Power Company which did not exist in 2012, stock compensation of
$2,073,115, and professional fees of $1,822,033.

 
Net Loss

 
For the year ended December 31, 2013, Premier had a net loss of $4,004,957 as compared to a net loss of $2,115,372 for

the year ended December 31, 2012. Premier’s accumulated deficit as of December 31, 2013 was $13,146,885. These conditions
raise substantial doubt about Premier’s ability to continue as a going concern over the next twelve months.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources

 
During the year ended December 31, 2013, cash flow from operations were not sufficient to meet operating commitments.

Cash flow from operations are expected to be insufficient to meet operating commitments throughout the remainder of the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2014.

 
As of December 31, 2013, working capital was $682,793 and cash was $781,569 while at December 31, 2012 working

capital was $(219,204) and cash was $44,311. The increase in working capital is primarily attributable to the on-going sale of
common stock. Working capital is not expected to increase through revenues generated by Premier’s subsidiaries during the balance
of this year.

 
Net cash used in or provided by operating, investing and financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2013 and

2012 were as follows:
 

  
Year Ended 

December 31,  
  2013   2012  
Net cash (used) in operating activities  $ (2,961,812)   (1,477,138)
Net cash (used) in investing activities  $ (21,109)   (84,070)
Net cash provided by financing activities  $ 3,720,180   1,345,571 

 
The changes in net cash used in operating activities are attributable to net income adjusted for non-cash charges as

presented in the statements of cash flows and changes in working capital as discussed above. Net cash provided by financing
activities relates primarily to cash received from sales of common stock.

 
Going Concern

 
The Company has sustained net losses of $13,146,885 since inception additional funding may be required to sustain

operations and satisfy contractual obligations for planned operations. The ability to establish the Company as a going concern may
be dependent upon obtaining additional funding in order to finance planned operations.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

 
We have no off-balance sheet financing arrangements.
 

 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

 
Principles of Consolidation

 
The consolidated balance sheets include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. The consolidated statements of

operations include the Company’s accounts and the accounts of its subsidiaries from the date of acquisition. All intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

 
Use of Estimates

 
In preparing these consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP, management is required to make estimates

and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of
the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates and assumptions included in our consolidated financial
statements relate to the valuation of long-lived assets, estimates of sales returns, inventory reserves and accruals for potential
liabilities, and valuation assumptions related to equity instruments and share based compensation.

 
Revenue

 
Revenue is recognized on the sale of a product when the product is shipped, which is when the risk of loss transfers to our

customers, and collection of the sale is reasonably assured. A product is not shipped without an order from the customer and the
completion of credit acceptance procedures. The majority of our sales are cash or credit card; however, we occasionally extend
terms to our customers. Accounts receivable are reviewed periodically for collectability. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we did
not maintain a reserve for bad debt, which are minimal based upon our historical experience.

 
Sales Returns

 
We allow customers to return defective products when they meet certain established criteria as outlined in our sales terms

and conditions. It is our practice to regularly review and revise, when deemed necessary, our estimates of sales returns, which are
based primarily on actual historical return rates. We record estimated sales returns as reductions to sales, and accounts receivable.
Returned products which are recorded as inventory are valued based upon the amount we expect to realize upon its subsequent
disposition. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, there was no reserve for sales returns, which are minimal based upon our historical
experience.

 
Derivative Financial Instruments

 
The Company evaluates all of its financial instruments to determine if such instruments are derivatives or contain features

that qualify as embedded derivatives. For derivative financial instruments that are accounted for as liabilities, the derivative instrument
is initially recorded at its fair value and is then re-valued at each reporting date, with changes in the fair value reported in the
consolidated statements of operations. For stock-based derivative financial instruments, the Company uses a weighted average
Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to value the derivative instruments at inception and on subsequent valuation dates. The
classification of derivative instruments, including whether such instruments should be recorded as liabilities or as equity, is evaluated
at the end of each reporting period. Derivative instrument liabilities are classified in the balance sheet as current or non-current based
on whether or not net-cash settlement of the derivative instrument could be required within 12 months of the balance sheet date. As
of December 31, 2012, the Company no longer has derivative financial instruments.
 

Stock Based Compensation
 

We periodically issue stock options and warrants to employees and non-employees in non-capital raising transactions for
services and for financing costs. We account for stock option and warrant grants issued and vesting to employees based on Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) ASC Topic 718, “Compensation – Stock Compensation”, whereas the award is measured at its
fair value at the date of grant and is amortized ratably over the vesting period. We account for stock option and warrant grants issued
and vesting to non-employees in accordance with ASC Topic 505, “Equity”, whereas the value of the stock compensation is based
upon the measurement date as determined at either (a) the date at which a performance commitment is reached, or (b) at the date at
which the necessary performance to earn the equity instruments is complete.
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards Adopted
 
Effective January 2012, the Company adopted ASU No. 2011-04, “Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value

Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) of Fair Value
Measurement – Topic 820 (ASU 2-11-04).” ASU 2011-04 represents the converged guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) and the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) on fair value measurement. A variety of measures are
included in the update intended to either clarify existing fair value measurement requirements, change particular principles
requirements for measuring fair value or for disclosing information about fair value measurements. For many of the requirements, the
FASB does not intend to change the application of existing requirements under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 820,
Fair Value Measurements. ASU 2011-04 was effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The
adoption of this update did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

 
Effective January 2012, the Company adopted ASU No. 2011-05, “Presentation of Comprehensive Income (ASU 2011-05)”.

ASU 2011-05 is intended to increase the prominence of items reported in other comprehensive income and to facilitate convergence
of accounting guidance in this area with that of the IASB. The amendments require that all non-owner changes in shareholders’ equity
be presented in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. In December
2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-12, “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No.
2011-05 (ASU 2011-12).” ASU 2011-12 defers the provisions of ASU 2011-05 that require the presentation of reclassification
adjustments on the face of both the statement of income and statement of other comprehensive income. Amendments under ASU
2011-05 that were not deferred under ASU 2011-12 will be applied retrospectively for fiscal years, and interim periods within those
years, beginning after December 15, 2011. The adoption of this update did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.

 
Not Yet Adopted
 
In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-04, “Liabilities (Topic 405): Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several

Liability Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation Is Fixed at the Reporting Date.” The amendments in ASU 2013-
04 provide guidance for the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of obligations resulting from joint and several liability
arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation within the scope of this Update is fixed at the reporting date, except for
obligations addressed within existing guidance in U.S. GAAP. The guidance requires an entity to measure those obligations as the
sum of the amount the reporting entity agreed to pay on the basis of its arrangement among its co-obligors and any additional amount
the reporting entity expects to pay on behalf of its co-obligors. The guidance in this Update also requires an entity to disclose the
nature and amount of the obligation as well as other information about those obligations. The amendments in this standard are
effective retrospectively for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. We are
evaluating the effect, if any, adoption of ASU No. 2013-04 will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.  

 
In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-05, “Foreign Currency Matters (Topic 830): Parent’s Accounting for the

Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an
Investment in a Foreign Entity.” The amendments in ASU No. 2013-05 resolve the diversity in practice about whether Subtopic 810-
10, Consolidation—Overall, or Subtopic 830-30, Foreign Currency Matters—Translation of Financial Statements, applies to the
release of the cumulative translation adjustment into net income when a parent either sells a part or all of its investment in a foreign
entity or no longer holds a controlling financial interest in a subsidiary or group of assets that is a nonprofit activity or a business
(other than a sale of in substance real estate or conveyance of oil and gas mineral rights) within a foreign entity. In addition, the
amendments in this Update resolve the diversity in practice for the treatment of business combinations achieved in stages
(sometimes also referred to as step acquisitions) involving a foreign entity. The amendments in this standard are effective
prospectively for fiscal years, and interim reporting periods within those years, beginning December 15, 2013. We are evaluating the
effect, if any, adoption of ASU No. 2013-05 will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

 
In April 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-07, “Presentation of Financial Statements (Top 205): Liquidation Basis of

Accounting.” The objective of ASU No. 2013-07 is to clarify when an entity should apply the liquidation basis of accounting and to
provide principles for the measurement of assets and liabilities under the liquidation basis of accounting, as well as any required
disclosures. The amendments in this standard is effective prospectively for entities that determine liquidation is imminent during
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2013, and interim reporting periods therein. We are evaluating the effect, if
any, adoption of ASU No. 2013-07 will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

 
Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the AICPA, and

the SEC did not or are not believed by management to have a material impact on our present or future consolidated financial
statements.

 
Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Premier Holding Corporation.

 
We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Premier Holding Corporation (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2013 and
2012 and the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an
audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits include examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the result of their consolidated operations and their cash
flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
 
As discussed in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, during the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company made
payments to Nexalin Technology. Nexalin Technology is in an unrelated business to the Company, and Mr. Letcavage is its president
and a shareholder. In addition, the Company has also made payments to iCapital Advisory, which Mr. Letcavages serve as President.
 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As shown
in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has incurred an accumulated deficit of $13,146,885 from inception to
December 31, 2013. This raises substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans
in regard to this matter are described in Note 3. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might
result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
 

 
/s/Anton & Chia, LLP
April 15, 2014
Newport Beach, CA
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PREMIER HOLDING CORPORATION

Consolidated Balance Sheets
 

  December 31,  
  2013   2012  
Assets         
Current assets:         

Cash  $ 781,569  $ 44,311 
Accounts receivable   438,976   – 
Prepaid expenses   13,134   15,467 

         
Total current assets   1,233,679   59,778 

         
Notes receivable   869,000   – 
Vehicles, net   19,350   – 
Intangible assets, net   201,366   269,980 
Goodwill   4,555,750   138,000 
Other assets   –   52,500 

Total Assets  $ 6,879,145  $ 520,258 

         
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity         
Current liabilities:         

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 315,063  $ 42,746 
Accrued commissions   117,685   – 
Related party payable   86,138   120,098 
Note payable   32,000   – 
Liabilities of discontinued operations   –   116,138 

Total current liabilities   550,886   278,982 
         
Stockholders’ Equity:         

Common stock, par value $.0001, 450,000,000 shares authorized, 151, 003, 328 and
55,794,549 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.   15,101   5,580 

Common Stock Payable   –   210,000 
Additional Paid-in-Capital   19,639,399   9,167,625 
Accumulated deficit   (13,146,885)   (9,141,928)
Total Premier Holding Corporation's Equity   6,507,615   241,276 
Non-controlling interest   (179,356)   – 

Total Stockholder's Equity   6,328,259   241,276 
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity  $ 6,879,145  $ 520,258 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PREMIER HOLDING CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
 

  December 31,  
  2013   2012  
Revenues  $ 1,804,980  $ – 
Cost of Sales   39,214   – 

Gross Profit   1,765,766   – 
         
Operating expenses:         

Selling, general and administrative   6,955,779   1,357,165 
Total operating expenses   6,955,779   1,357,165 
Operating loss   (5,190,013)   (1,357,165)

         
Other expense:         

Interest expense   –   (1,295)
Total other expense   –   (1,295)

         
Loss before income taxes, non-controlling interest, and discontinued operations   (5,190,013)   (1,358,460)
         
Income taxes   –   – 
         
Loss before non-controlling interest and discontinued operations   (5,190,013)   (1,358,460)
         
Income / (Loss) from discontinued operations   985,138   (756,912)
         
Income (loss)   (4,204,875)   (2,115,372)
         
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest   199,918   – 
         
Net loss attributable to Premier Holding Corporation  $ (4,004,957)  $ (2,115,372)

         
Net Loss Attributable to Premier Holding Corporation per share - basic and diluted         
Loss attributable to continuing operation  $ (4,990,095)  $ (1,358,460)

Net loss per common share — basic and diluted  $ (0.04)  $ (0.03)
         
Net Loss Attributable to Premier Holding Corporation per share - basic and diluted         
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations   985,138   (756,912)
Net income (Loss) per common share from discontinued operations — basic and diluted   0.01   (0.02)
         
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period   111,847,320   47,892,487 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PREMIER HOLDING CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
 

  December 31,  

  2013   2012  
Operating Activities:         

Net loss attributable to Premier Holding Corporation  $ (4,004,957)  $ (2,115,372)
         

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in operations:         
Share based payments issued for services   2,073,115   475,930 
Amortization and depreciation expense   70,374   28,589 
Imputed Interest expense   –   298 
Loss attributable to non-controlling interest of consolidated subsidiary   (199,918)   – 

         
Change in operating assets and liabilities:         

Accounts receivable   (310,300)   – 
Prepaid expenses   2,334   (15,467)
Other assets   52,500   – 
Accounts payable   340,178   32,746 
Net cash provided by discontinued operation   (985,138)   – 
Accrued expenses   –   116,138 
Net cash used in operating activities   (2,961,812)   (1,477,138)

         
         
Investing activities:         

Purchase of vehicle   (21,109)   – 
Cash paid for acquisition of Active ES   –   (31,570)
Payments for Investment in the Power Company       (52,500)
Net cash used in investing activities   (21,109)   (84,070)

         
Financing activities:         

Advance from related party payable   –   120,098 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock   3,698,180   1,230,473 
Proceeds / payments - notes payable   22,000   (5,000)
Net cash provided by financing activities   3,720,180   1,345,571 

         
Net increase (decrease) in cash   737,259   (215,637)
         
Cash at beginning of period   44,311   259,948 
         
Cash at end of period  $ 781,570  $ 44,311 

         
Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities         
Common stock issued for acquired assets  $ 4,500,000  $ 390,000 

         
Note receivable related to sale of subsidiary  $ 869,000  $ – 
Supplemental Cash flow Information         
Interest Paid  $ –  $ – 
Income taxes paid  $ –  $ – 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PREMIER HOLDING CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Shareholder's Equity
 

 

   Common Stock   
Additional

Paid-in   
Common

Stock   
Minority

Interest in   Accumulated   

Deficit
Accumulated

During
Development    

   Shares   Amount   Capital   Payable   Subsidiary   Deficit   Stage   Total  
Balance as of

December 31,
2011   44,007,020  $ 4,401  $ 7,282,103  $ –      $ (7,026,556)  $ (3,293,586)  $ 259,948 

Common Stock
Options &
Warrants issued
for services           115,930                   115,930 

Common Stock
issued after
exercise of
Warrants   375,000   38   4,420                   4,458 

Common Stock
issued for
services   2,740,000   274   359,726                   360,000 

Common Stock
issued for cash   7,922,529   792   1,225,223                   1,226,015 

Common Stock
issued for
acquisition of
Active ES   750,000   75   179,925                   180,000 

Common Stock
payable for
acquisition of
Active ES               210,000               210,000 

Imputed interest           298                   298 
Net loss                       (2,115,372)   (2,115,372)   (2,115,372)
Balance,

December 31,
2012   55,794,549   5,580   9,167,625   210,000       (9,141,928)   (5,408,958)   241,277 

Common Stock
issued for
services   10,639,362   1,064   2,034,369                   2,035,433 

Common Stock
Options &
Warrants issued
for services           37,682                   37,682 

Common Stock
issued for cash   45,337,731   4,534   3,107,205                   3,111,739 

Common Stock
issued for cash
with warrants   8,356,686   836   585,606                   586,441 

Minority Interest
in Subsidiary                   20,562           20,562 

Stock issued to
Active ES   875,000   88   209,912   (210,000)               0 

Shares for TPC   30,000,000   3,000   4,497,000                   4,500,000 
Net Loss                   (199,918)   (4,004,957)       (4,204,875)
Balance

December 31,
2013   151,003,328  $ 15,101  $ 19,639,399  $ –  $ (179,356)  $ (13,146,885)  ($ 5,408,958)  $ 6,328,259 

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PREMIER HOLDING CORPORATION

 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

 
Premier Holding Corporation (“Premier”) is devoting substantially all of its efforts to establishing energy services companies. Premier
was organized under the laws of the State of Nevada on October 18, 1971 under the name of Mr. Nevada, Inc. On November 13,
2008, Premier filed a Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation with the State of Nevada Secretary of State to change its
name from OVM International Holding Corporation to Premier Holding Corporation. These businesses, which were started during
2012, are primarily focused on providing small and large-scale commercial companies with energy solutions to reduce the costs of
utilities through consultations as well as product sales to complete those installations via shipment from inventory on hand to the
customer site. Premier is organized with a holding company structure such that Premier provides financial and management
expertise, which includes access to capital, financing, legal, insurance, mergers, acquisitions, joint ventures and management
strategies.

 
Premier’s wholly owned subsidiary Energy Efficiency Experts (“E3”) is a U.S. energy service company based in the Chicago area of
Illinois offering energy efficiency products and services to commercial middle market companies, Fortune 500 brands, developers and
management companies of large scale residential developments as well as the general public so long as the product and the

solutions fit the market segment.. E3’s business is focused as an integrator of clean technology solutions in the U.S., with strategic

expansion plans in Latin America, Asia and Europe. E3’s core business expects to deliver green solutions, branded specifically as E3,
which include best-of-class alternative energy technology portfolio, and energy reduction technologies in smart lighting controls, LED
lighting, battery storage power plants, energy and power control management systems, and other clean technologies specific to its
market.

 
On February 28, 2013, Premier acquired an 80% interest in The Power Company USA, LLC (“TPC”) for 30,000,000 shares of
Premier’s common stock valued at $4,500,000. TPC is based is a deregulated power broker which was originally formed as an Illinois
limited liability company on November 29, 2010. TPC brokers power to both residential and commercial users in the 12 states that
allow the distribution of deregulated power.

 
 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 

Basis of Presentation
 

The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally
accepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP").

 
Principles of Consolidation

 
The audited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Premier Holding Corporation, E3 and the accounts of THE
POWER COMPANY USA, LLC as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013. All significant intercompany transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

 
Use of Estimates

 
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

 
Cash and cash equivalents include short-term cash investments that have an initial maturity of 90 days or less. The Company had no
cash equivalents as of and December 31, 2013 and 2012.

 
Revenue Recognition

 
The Company’s wholly owned Energy Efficiency Experts, Inc. and The Power Company USA, LLC. offer renewable energy
production and energy efficiency products and services to both commercial middle market companies as well as residential
customers. In accordance with the requirements of ASC 605-10-599, the Company recognizes revenue when (1) persuasive evidence
of an arrangement exists (contracts); (2) delivery has occurred; (3) the seller’s price is fixed or determinable (per the customer’s
contract); and (4) collectability is reasonably assured (based upon our credit policy). When consultations are provided to customers,
the revenue is recognized at the completion of the service when collectability is reasonably assured. For products sold to customers
revenue is recognized when title has passed to the customer and collectability is reasonably assured; and no further efforts are
required. Revenue generated from commercial and residential electricity usage is supported by annual (or longer) contracts with
users, which the Company earns commissions from power suppliers when executed. The commission revenue is recognized when
the contract is signed, and the performance is completed, with an appropriate allowance for estimates cancellation.

 
Accounts Receivable

 
All accounts receivable are due thirty (30) days from the date billed. If the funds are not received within thirty (30) days the customer
is contacted to arrange payment. The Company uses the allowance method to account for uncollectable accounts receivable. All
accounts were considered collectible as of December 31, 2013 and no allowance for bad debts was considered necessary.

 
Non-controlling Interest

 
Non-controlling interests in our subsidiary is recorded as a component of our equity, separate from the parent’s equity. Purchase or
sales of equity interests that do not result in a change of control are accounted for as equity transactions. Results of operations
attributable to the non-controlling interest are included in our consolidated results of operations and, upon loss of control, the interest
sold, as well as interest retained, if any, will be reported at fair value with any gain or loss recognized in earnings.

 
Earnings/Loss Per Share

 
The Company has adopted the FASB ASC Topic 260 regarding earnings / loss per share, which provides for calculation of “basic”
and “diluted” earnings / loss per share. Basic earnings / loss per share includes no dilution and is computed by dividing net income /
loss available to common shareholders by the weighted average common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings / loss
per share reflect the potential dilution of securities that could share in the earnings of an entity similar to fully diluted earnings / loss
per share.

 
Income Tax

 
Deferred income tax is provided for differences between the bases of assets and liabilities for financial and income tax reporting. A
deferred tax asset, subject to a valuation allowance, is recognized for estimated future tax benefits of tax-basis operating losses being
carried forward. Income taxes are provided based upon the liability method of accounting pursuant to the FASB ASC Topic 740-10-30
concerning Income Taxes. Under this approach, deferred income taxes are recorded to reflect the tax consequences in future years
of differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at each year-end. A valuation
allowance is recorded against the deferred tax asset if management does not believe the Company has met the “more likely than not”
standard imposed by the FASB ASC Topic 740-10-30 concerning Income Taxes to allow recognition of such an asset.

 
Stock-Based Compensation

 
We periodically issue stock options and warrants to employees and non-employees in non-capital raising transactions for services and
for financing costs. We account for stock option and warrant grants issued and vesting to employees based on Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) ASC Topic 718, “Compensation – Stock Compensation”, whereas the award is measured at its fair value at
the date of grant and is amortized ratably over the vesting period. We account for stock option and warrant grants issued and vesting
to non-employees in accordance with ASC Topic 505, “Equity”, whereas the value of the stock compensation is based upon the
measurement date as determined at either (a) the date at which a performance commitment is reached, or (b) at the date at which the
necessary performance to earn the equity instruments is complete.
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

 
The Company periodically reviews the carrying value of intangible assets not subject to amortization, including goodwill, to determine
whether impairment may exist. Goodwill and certain intangible assets are assessed annually, or when certain triggering events occur,
for impairment using fair value measurement techniques. These events could include a significant change in the business climate,
legal factors, a decline in operating performance, competition, sale or disposition of a significant portion of the business, or other
factors. Specifically, goodwill impairment is determined using a two-step process. The first step of the goodwill impairment test is
used to identify potential impairment by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill.
Premier uses level 3 inputs and a discounted cash flow methodology to estimate the fair value of a reporting unit. A discounted cash
flow analysis requires one to make various judgmental assumptions including assumptions about future cash flows, growth rates, and
discount rates. The assumptions about future cash flows and growth rates are based on the Company’s budget and long-term plans.
Discount rate assumptions are based on an assessment of the risk inherent in the respective reporting units. If the fair value of a
reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is considered not impaired and the second step of the
impairment test is unnecessary. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the goodwill
impairment test is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any. The second step of the goodwill impairment test
compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill.  If the carrying amount of the
reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that
excess. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the amount of goodwill recognized in a business
combination. That is, the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit (including any
unrecognized intangible assets) as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the
reporting unit was the purchase price paid to acquire the reporting unit.

 
As of December 31, 2013, amortizable intangible assets consist of patents, trade names, trademarks, domain names, website
emails, and non-compete agreements, and contracts with suppliers and customers. See Note 4 for further information regarding the
acquisition and amortization of these intangible assets. These intangibles are being amortized on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives, two to ten years.

 
Fair Value Measurements

 
On January 1, 2011, Premier adopted guidance which defines fair value, establishes a framework for using fair value to measure
financial assets and liabilities on a recurring basis, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. Beginning on January 1,
2011, Premier also applied the guidance to non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, which
includes goodwill and intangible assets. The guidance establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes
the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used
when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on
market data obtained from sources independent of Premier. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect Premier’s assumptions of
what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the
circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the reliability of the inputs as follows: 

 
Level 1 - Valuation is based upon unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that Premier has
the ability to access.

 
Level 2 - Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in inactive markets; or valuations based on models where the significant inputs are observable in the market.

 
Level 3 - Valuation is based on models where significant inputs are not observable. The unobservable inputs reflect Premier's own
assumptions about the inputs that market participants would use.
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Premier’s financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, note receivable, accounts payable, related party payable and
accrued liabilities. The estimated fair value of cash, accounts receivable, note receivable, accounts payable, related party payable
and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term nature of these instruments. 

 
Certain non-financial assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. Accordingly, these assets are not measured and
adjusted to fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to periodic impairment tests. These items primarily include long-lived
assets, goodwill and other intangible assets.

 
Concentration of Credit Risk

 
The Company maintains its cash in multiple financial institutions. The Company limits the amount of credit exposure to each
individual financial institution and places its temporary cash into investments of high credit quality with a financial institution that
exceeds federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses related to these balances and believes its credit risk
to be minimal.

 
Gain from Discontinued Operations

 
Gain from discontinued operations of $985,138 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 consists of the sale of both intangible
assets in the form of sales opportunities and leads, and the assumption of liabilities from the discontinued operations to WEPOWER
ECO Corp (an unrelated company). The gain is based upon the estimated value of the $5,000,000 note received in the transaction.
The provisional amounts are subject to revision until the evaluations are completed to the extent that additional information is
obtained about the facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date. The preliminary appraised value of the note is
$869,000; $116,138 consists of liabilities which were assumed by the acquirer in the transaction.

 
RECENTLY ISSUED AND ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

 
Adopted
 
In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-04, “Liabilities (Topic 405): Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several Liability
Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation Is Fixed at the Reporting Date.” The amendments in ASU 2013-04
provide guidance for the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of obligations resulting from joint and several liability
arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation within the scope of this Update is fixed at the reporting date, except for
obligations addressed within existing guidance in U.S. GAAP. The guidance requires an entity to measure those obligations as the
sum of the amount the reporting entity agreed to pay on the basis of its arrangement among its co-obligors and any additional amount
the reporting entity expects to pay on behalf of its co-obligors. The guidance in this Update also requires an entity to disclose the
nature and amount of the obligation as well as other information about those obligations. The amendments in this standard are
effective retrospectively for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. We are
evaluating the effect, if any, adoption of ASU No. 2013-04 will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.
 
 
In April 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-07, “Presentation of Financial Statements (Top 205): Liquidation Basis of Accounting.”
The objective of ASU No. 2013-07 is to clarify when an entity should apply the liquidation basis of accounting and to provide
principles for the measurement of assets and liabilities under the liquidation basis of accounting, as well as any required disclosures.
The amendments in this standard is effective prospectively for entities that determine liquidation is imminent during annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2013, and interim reporting periods therein. We are evaluating the effect, if any, adoption of
ASU No. 2013-07 will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

  
Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force) and the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission did not or are not believed by management to have a material impact on the Company’s
present or future financial statements.
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NOTE 3 – GOING CONCERN

 
The Company has sustained operating losses of $13,146,885 since inception. The Company’s continuation as a going concern is
dependent on management’s ability to develop profitable operations, and / or obtain additional financing from its stockholders and / or
other third parties.

 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern; however, the above conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to do so. The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the
amounts and classifications of liabilities that may result should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

 
If management projections are not met, the Company may have to reduce its operating expenses and to seek additional funding
through debt and/or equity offerings.

 
 

NOTE 4 – ACQUISITIONS & GOODWILL
 

Active ES Lighting Controls, Inc. Acquisition
 

On July 25, 2012, Premier acquired the assets of the Active ES Lighting Controls, Inc. (“AES”) business by completing the
transactions contemplated under an asset purchase agreement dated July 25, 2012 (the “Agreement”) with AES.  In accordance with
the terms of the Agreement, the purchase price for the acquisition consisted of the following components: (i) 750,000 shares of
Premier’s common stock issued at closing; (ii) $30,000 in cash paid at closing; (iii) a payable, due December 31, 2012, of Premier in
the principal amount of $15,000; (v) contingent shares payable (payable 12 months after closing of the transaction) of a number of
shares of common stock of Premier equal to 875,000 shares based upon the following contingencies:

 
 A. 175,000 shares of common stock if the volume weighted average price (“VWAP”) is below $2.00 for 30 consecutive trading

days during the 12 months following the contingent period (begins after stock received in transaction has had restricted
legend (section 144) removed and continues for nine months)
 

 B. 175,000 shares of common stock if the VWAP is below $1.00 for 60 consecutive trading days during the contingent period;
 

 C. 175,000 shares of common stock if the VWAP is below $0.80 for 60 consecutive trading days during the contingent period;
 

 D. 175,000 shares of common stock if the VWAP is below $0.60 for 60 consecutive trading days during the contingent period;
  

 E. 175,000 shares of common stock if the VWAP is below $0.40 for 60 consecutive trading days during the contingent period;
 

As of December 31, 2012, the dollar value of the contingent shares payable is $210,000, which is recorded as a common stock
payable on the accompanying balance sheet.  During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company issued all the 875,000
shares to AES.

 
The acquisition has been accounted for as an asset purchase and the Company valued all assets and liabilities acquired at their fair
values on the date of acquisition.
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As of December 31, 2012, the marketing results of operations of AES products are included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition. The allocation of the purchase price to assets and liabilities based upon fair value
determinations was as follows:

 
IP/Technology – patents  $ 167,570 
Non-compete agreement   76,000 
Trademarks & Service Marks   55,000 
Goodwill   138,000 

Total purchase price  $ 436,570 

 
The purchase price consideration consisted of the following:

 
Cash  $ 31,570 
Note Payable   15,000 
Common Stock   180,000 
Common Stock Payable   210,000 

Total purchase price  $ 436,570 

 
Estimated Useful Lives of Acquired Intangibles

 
The estimated useful lives (years) of the acquired intangibles are as follows

 
  Useful Life  
IP/Technology - Patents   5 
Non-compete Agreement   10 
Trademarks & Service Marks   2 
Goodwill   N/A 

  
The Power Company USA, LLC Share Exchange

 
On February 28, 2013 Premier acquired 80% of the outstanding membership units of the The Power Company USA, LLC, an Illinois
limited liability company (“TPC” or “The Power Company”), a deregulated power broker in Illinois for thirty million 30,000,000 shares of
Premier’s common stock valued at $4,500,000. The Power Company had over 14,000 residential and commercial customers. The
initial accounting for the business combination is not complete because the evaluations necessary to assess the fair values of certain
net assets acquired and the amount of goodwill to be recognized are still in process. The provisional amounts are subject to revision
until the evaluations are completed to the extent that additional information is obtained about the facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date. Any changes to the fair value assessments will affect the acquisition-date fair value of goodwill. The
primary reason for acquisition of TPC at the time of the acquisition and factors that make up the goodwill recognized was TPC as a
marketing firm in the energy business, and PRHL as an operator, supplier, and manager of energy related company. PRHL
management believed that the skills and experience provided by the management and staff of TPC are a competitive advantage to
PRHL as we continue to expand our footprint in the energy management business
 
The total purchase price for the The Power Company USA, LLC acquisition was allocated as follows:
 
Goodwill  $ 4,500,000 
    Total assets acquired  $ 4,500,000 
The Purchase price consists of the following:     
Common Stock  $ 4,500,000 
    Total purchase price  $ 4,500,000 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2013, $250,000 of amortization expense of goodwill is tax deductible,
 
  Revenue   Earnings  
Actual from 2/28/2013–12/31/2013  $ 1,755,211  $ (925,023)
Supplemental pro forma from 1/1/2013-12/31/2013  $ 2,001,828  $ (5,279,635)
Supplemental pro forma for 1/1/2012-12/31/2012  $ 0  $ (1,414,741)
 
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2013, are as follows:
 
Balance as of January 1, 2013     
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Goodwill - Active ES  $ 138,000 
Accumulated impairment losses   – 
   138,000 
Goodwill acquired during the year - TPC   4,500,000 
Impairment losses   – 
Goodwill related to 20% non-controlling interest   (82,250)
     
Balance as of December 31, 2013     
Goodwill   4,555,750 
Accumulated impairment losses   – 
  $ 4,555,750 

 
 
The pro forma information below present statements of operations data as if the acquisition of TPC took place on January 1, 2012.
 
PREMIER HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Unaudited)
 
  2013   2012  
  Pro Forma   Pro Forma  
Revenue   2,001,828   – 
         
Cost of Sales   39,214   – 
   –   – 
Gross Profit   1,962,614   – 
         
Operating expenses:         
Selling, general and administrative   7,242,249   1,413,446 
Total operating expenses   7,242,249   1,413,446 

Loss from operations   (5,279,635)   (1,413,446)
         
Other income (expenses):         
Interest expense   –   (1,295)
Total non-operating expenses   –   (1,295)
         
Income/(Loss) from operations before income taxes, non-controlling interest, and
discontinued operations   (5,279,635)   (1,414,741)
         
Income taxes   –   – 
         
Income/(Loss) before non-controlling interest and discontinued operations   (5,279,635)   (1,414,741)
         
Net Income/(Loss) attributable to non-controlling interest   217,842   11,256 
         
Income/ Loss from discontinued operations   985,138   (756,912)
         
Net Profit (Loss) attributable to Premier Holding Corporation  $ (4,076,655)  $ (2,160,397)

         
Net loss from continuing operations   (5,061,793)   (1,403,485)

 

F-11

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
 
NOTE 5 – INTANGIBLES ASSETS, NET

 
The following table presents details of the Company’s total purchased intangible assets as of December 31, 2013:

 
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company’s recorded amortization expense related to the purchased
intangibles of $51,461 and $0, respectively.

  

  
Balance

12/31/2012   Additions   Amortization   Impairment   
Balance 

12/31/2013  
                     
IP/Technology – Patents  $ 153,607  $ –  $ (33,515)  $ –  $ 120,092 
Non-compete Agreement   72,832   –   (7,600)   –   65,232 
Trademarks & Service Marks   43,542   –   (27,500)   –   16,042 
                     
  $ 269,980  $ –  $ (68,615)  $ –  $ 201,366 

  
NOTE 6 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 
During the year ended December 31, 2013, Mr. Letcavage (directly or through related entities) was paid $240,000 as compensation
for his role as our CEO and CFO, and $37,500 for consulting, for a total of $277,500, and $661,319 for contract labor, including
payments to Nexalin Technology specifically for the direct costs related to independent contractors performing sales lead generation
(Nexalin Technology is in an unrelated business to the Company, and Mr. Letcavage is its president and shareholder), which were
not reported as income. In addition, the Company has also paid $28,787 to iCapital Advisory for consulting services received during
the year 2013, Mr. Letcavage is president and shareholder of iCapital Advisory.
 
Additionally, we have also reviewed the facts and circumstance of our relationship with Nexalin Technology and iCapital Advisory and
have assessed whether these two companies are variable interest entities (VIE). Based on the guidance provided in ASC 810-10-50-
5(a), these two companies are not considered VIEs. The Company is not the primary beneficiary, whether those two companies have
any income (losses) as of December 31, 2013, it would not be absorbed by Premier Holding Corporation.

 
NOTE 7 – CAPITAL STOCK TRANSACTIONS

 
Preferred Stock

 
On June 3, 2013, the Company filed a Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation with the State of Nevada Secretary of
State giving it the authority to issue 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share.

 
Common Stock

 
On February 28, 2013 the company acquired 80% of the outstanding membership units of The Power Company USA, LLC, an Illinois
limited liability company (“TPC” or “The Power Company”), for thirty million 30,000,000 shares of Premier’s common stock valued at
$4,500,000. This transaction was exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, based upon Section 4(2) for transactions
by the issuer not involving any public offering.

   
On June 3, 2013, the Company filed a Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation with the State of Nevada Secretary of
State giving it the authority to issue 450,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share.

  
From October 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013, the Company issued 10,639,362 shares of common stock to various consultants for
services. A compensation expense of $2,035,433 was recorded during the period ended December 31, 2013.
 
During the year 2013, the Company entered into several of stock purchase agreements with various investors for sale of 45,337,731
shares of its common stock. The sales closed and cash of an aggregated amount $3,111,739 was received.
 
During the year 2013, the Company entered into difference series of stock purchase agreements for cash and with warrants attached
for a total of 8,356,686 shares of the Company’s common stock for the sale of $586,441.
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Common Stock Options
 
On February 20, 2013, the Company granted 75,000 stock options to a Director, Woodrow W. Clark II, to purchase shares at $0.25
per share. The options expire February 20, 2016 and vested on the grant date. The total estimated value using the Black-Scholes
Model, based on a volatility rate of 468%, expected term of 2 years, risk free rate of 0.42 percent, and a call option value of $0.17,
was $12,749. As the stock options were immediately vested, the stock expensed was $12,749 on that date and for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

 
On February 20, 2013, the Company granted 75,000 stock options to a Director, Lane Harrison to purchase shares at $0.25 per
share. The options expire February 20, 2016 and vested on the grant date. The total estimated value using the Black-Scholes Model,
based on a volatility rate of 468%, expected term of 2 years, risk free rate of 0.42 percent, and a call option value of $0.17, was
$12,749. As the stock options were immediately vested, the stock expensed was $12,749 on that date and for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

 
On April 9, 2013, the Company modified the 75,000 stock options granted to a Director, Lane Harrison on February 20, 2013, to
purchase shares at $0.25 per share, the option was modified entitling Mr. Harrison to purchase 100,000 shares at $0.10, on or before
April 30, 2015. The stock option provided for cashless exercise term. The total estimated value using the Black-Scholes Model, based
on a volatility rate of 470%, expected term of 2 years, risk free rate of 0.42 percent, and a call option value of $0.0882, was $10,285.
The stock expensed was $10,285 on that date and for the year ended December 31, 2013.

 
On April 9, 2013, the Company modified the 75,000 stock options granted to a Director, Woodrow Clark on February 20, 2013, to
purchase shares at $0.25 per share, the option was modified entitling Mr. Clark to purchase 100,000 shares at $0.10, on or before
April 30, 2015. The stock option provided for cashless exercise term. The total estimated value using the Black-Scholes Model, based
on a volatility rate of 470%, expected term of 2 years, risk free rate of 0.42 percent, and a call option value of $0.0882, was $10,287.
The stock expensed was $10,287 on that date and for the year ended December 31, 2013.
 
A summary of option activity as of December 31, 2013 and changes during the year ended is presented below:
 

  
Number

Outstanding   

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price Per

Share   

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual Life

(Years)  
          
Outstanding at January 1, 2013   150,000  $ 0.33   2.25 
             
Granted   50,000   0.25   4.00 
Exercised   –   –   – 
Canceled/forfeited/expired           – 
Outstanding at December 31, 2013   200,000  $ 0.25   3.61 
             
Options nonvested and exercisable at December 31, 2013   –   –   – 

Options vested and exercisable at December 31, 2013   200,000  $ 0.25   3.61 
 
Common Stock Warrants

 
During the year 2013, the Company has issued 8,356,686 shares of common stock with warrants attached for an aggregated price of
$586,441 and the terms of the subscription were: for each 4 shares purchased, the purchaser received 2 warrants, one warrant with
future price of $0.15 and a second warrant with a future price of $0.20, both warrants expire two years from the closing date
(1,071,847 at $0.15 and 1,071,847 at $0.20). The total estimated value using the Black-Scholes model.

 
On December 31, 2013, 650,000 warrants were issued to Rick Weed with an exercise price of $0.225. The Company valued these
warrants at $146,250, and $17,110 was recognized as expense in 2013.
 

F-13

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
A summary of non-employee warrant activity during the year ended as of December 31, 2013 is presented below:

 

  
Number

Outstanding   

Weighted-
Average Exercise
Price Per Share   

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual Life

(Years)  
             
Outstanding at January 1, 2013   450,000  $ 0.57   2.59 
             
Granted   2,793,694   0.175   1.85 
Exercised   –   –   – 
Canceled/forfeited/expired   450,000   .057   – 
Outstanding at December 31, 2013   2,793,694  $ 0.175   1.85 
             
Warrants vested and exercisable at December 31, 2013   2,793,694  $ 0.175   1.85 

 
NOTE 8 – DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

 
The Company acquired assets from WEPOWER, LLC during 2011. WEPOWER, Ecolutions, Inc. was expected to offer clean energy
products and services to commercial markets, developers, and management companies of large scale residential developments. In
2012, WEPOWER Ecolutions, Inc was classified as held for sale under the requirements of ASC 360-10-45-9, and therefore, the
result of its operations are reported in discontinued operations in accordance with ASC 205-20-45-3. On January 7, 2013, Premier
Holding Corporation (“PRHL”), acting through its wholly owned subsidiary, WEPOWER Ecolutions, Inc., completed the sale of assets
under an Asset Purchase Agreement with WEPOWER Eco Corp., a newly formed entity, controlled by Kevin B. Donovan, PRHL’s
former CEO. PRHL sold certain assets related solar energy, wind power projects, energy efficiency projects in real estate, and fuel
efficiency for diesel and gasoline engines for a note payable for $5,000,000, no interest (valuation on the note is $869,000 by using
the Enterprise Value with discounted cash flows method) WEPOWER Eco Corp. assumed $116,138 in liabilities, acquired three
patents, six trademarks, and twenty-eight contracts. Further, PRHL and WEPOWER Eco Corp. agreed to certain exclusive business
opportunities, fifteen exclusive opportunities and nineteen exclusive for nine months. A Mutual General Release between PRHL,
WEPOWER Ecolutions, Inc., WEPOWER Eco Corp., and the former directors and officers, Kevin Donovan, Frank Schulte, and
Thomas C. Lynch was signed, and executed on January 4, 2013 releasing all parties from all claims, from whatever source.

 
NOTE 9 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

 
Subsequent to the period ended December 31, 2013 the Company entered into a series of stock purchase agreements with
accredited investors for the sale of 4,035,350 shares of its common stock, the sales closed and cash of $421,776 was received.
Additionally, 24,818 shares of common stock were issued for services. There was no underwriter, no underwriting discounts or
commissions, no general solicitation, no advertisement, and resale restrictions were imposed by placing a Rule 144 legend on the
certificates. The persons who received securities have such knowledge in business and financial matters that he/she/it is capable of
evaluating the merits and risks of the transaction. This transaction was exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933,
based upon Section 4(2) for transactions by the issuer not involving any public offering. 
 
Subsequent to the period ended December 31, 2013 the Company settled a disagreement with a former employee. In 2013 Brian
Manahan alleged a complaint related to shares previously issued in 2012 related to his employment. On March 4, 2014 the parties
agreed to a settlement whereby the Company would pay Mr. Manahan $35,000 payable over a period of one year, payment was
personally guaranteed by Randall Letcavage. As well, Marvin Winkler agreed to transfer $15,000 in the form of 83,334 common
shares of the Company to Mr. Manahan. In return, Mr. Manahan agreed to sell no more than 30,000 shares of the Company’s stock
per month through June 30, 2014. Additionally, WePower LLC returned 5,000,000 common shares of the Company previously issued
related to the sale of TPC, and in exchange for the promissory note in the face amount of $5,000,000 (and valued at 869,000 on the
Company’s financial statements as of December 31, 2013), the Company had returned an additional 2,500,000 common shares.
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

 
Since inception, there have been no disagreements with Premier’s independent accountants.
 
In February 2013, Premier retained the accounting services of Anton & Chia, LLP and terminated the accounting services of

M&K CPAS, PLLC.
 

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report, we conducted an evaluation, under supervision and with the
participation of management, including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (Exchange Act). Based upon that evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective. Disclosure controls and procedures are defined by Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of
the Exchange Act as controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in
reports filed with the SEC under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
 

For the Report of Management on Internal Control and the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting, see Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. 

 
Management’s Annual Report on Disclosure Controls and Procedures over Financial Reporting
 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate our disclosure controls and procedures over
financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act as amended, as a process designed by, or under
the supervision of, our principal executive and principal financial officer and effected by our board of directors, management and other
personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States and includes those policies
and procedures that:

 

Ÿ   
Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our transactions

and any disposition of our assets;

Ÿ   
Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and

Ÿ   
Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or

disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
 

Because of its inherent limitations, our disclosure controls and procedures over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. In addition, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in our disclosure controls and procedures over financial

reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not
be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Our management assessed the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013. In making this assessment, our management used the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (1992).
Based on this assessment, management identified the following three material weaknesses that have caused management to
conclude that, as of December 31, 2013, our disclosure controls and procedures, and our disclosure controls and procedures over
financial reporting, were not effective at the reasonable assurance level:
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1. We do not have written documentation of our disclosure controls and procedures policies and procedures. Written

documentation of key our disclosure controls and procedures over financial reporting is a requirement of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act as of the year ending December 31, 2013. Management evaluated the impact of our failure to have written documentation
of our disclosure controls and procedures and procedures on our assessment of our disclosure controls and procedures and has
concluded that the control deficiency that resulted represented a material weakness.

 
2. We do not have sufficient segregation of duties within accounting functions, which is a basic our disclosure controls and

procedures. Due to our size, segregation of all conflicting duties may not always be possible and may not be economically feasible.
However, to the extent possible, the initiation of transactions, the custody of assets and the recording of transactions should be
performed by separate individuals. Management evaluated the impact of our failure to have segregation of duties on our assessment
of our disclosure controls and procedures and has concluded that the control deficiency that resulted represented a material
weakness.

 
3. We do not have an audit committee as part of our Board of Directors, nor do we have an identified financial expert as an

independent member of our Board of Directors.
 
To address these material weaknesses, management performed additional analyses and other procedures to ensure that the

financial statements included herein fairly present, in all material respects, our financial position, results of operations and cash flows
for the periods presented. Accordingly, we believe that the financial statements included in this report fairly present, in all material
respects, our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented.

 
This Annual Report does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm regarding our

disclosure controls and procedures over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by our registered
public accounting firm pursuant to the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit us to provide only our
management’s report in this Annual Report.

 
Remediation of Material Weaknesses
 

To remediate the material weakness in our documentation, evaluation and testing of our disclosure controls and procedures
we plan to engage a third-party firm to assist us in remedying this material weakness once resources become available.

 
We intend to remedy our material weakness with regard to insufficient segregation of duties by hiring additional employees in

order to segregate duties in a manner that establishes effective disclosure controls and procedures once resources become available.
We also expect to add to our Board of Directors an independent financial expert, and to form an Audit Committee.

 
Changes in on Disclosure Controls and Procedures over Financial Reporting

 
There were no changes in our disclosure controls and procedures over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth

quarter of the year ended December 31, 2013 that have materially affected, or that are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
disclosure controls and procedures over financial reporting.

 
Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

 
None.
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PART III

 
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

 
The members of the Board of Directors of Premier serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders, or until their

successors have been elected and qualified. The officers serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.
 
The current executive officers, key employees and directors of Premier are as follows:
 

Name Age Title
Randall Letcavage 56 CEO/President/CFO/Chairman
Woodrow Clark, PhD 69 Director
Lane Harrison 62 Director

 
Randall Letcavage
 

Mr. Letcavage, age 56, was named Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officer of Premier
Holding Corporation. Prior to this he was employed as a consultant by Capital Finance LLC. He brings in excess of 25 years plus of
business experience specializing in the financial markets and business consulting and green energy/clean technology.  For the past
20 years Mr. Letcavage has been an investment banker widely recognized for individual achievements as well as his role of Founder,
Officer and Director of the iCapital Group that includes iCapital Finance Inc, iCapital Advisory LLC and iCap Development LLC (A
National “CDE” Community Development Entity – Certified by the U.S Treasury Department). Mr. Letcavage has also held executive
positions, invested, and/or operated numerous businesses including related companies in “Power Generation and Power Reduction”
– CEO of Ciralight Global Inc, CEO of Green Central Holdings, Consultant and second largest shareholder of publicly traded PRHL
which operates Energy Efficiency Experts (E3).  Letcavage had been successful in many areas additionally providing millions in
Healthcare funding. Mr. Letcavage personally acted as an advisor to municipalities leading millions in industrial bond transactions,
while also advising the National Conference of Black Mayors (NCBM; over 800 members all of whose cities may one day be able to
offer deregulated power services). Mr. Letcavage served as the Managing Director of NC Capital Markets and as Vice President of
The National Capital Companies, Inc. (directing the daily operations of most of its subsidiaries).  Mr. Letcavage was formerly the CEO
and a majority owner of Capital Access Group. Prior to Capital Access, Mr. Letcavage founded and/or managed several asset
management firms, including Valley Forge Capital Holdings and the Marshall Plan, LLC that directed and/or co-managed over $3
billion in assets with former renowned CALPERS (California Pension & Retirement Systems) Manager, Greta Marshall.

 
Prior to Valley Forge, Mr. Letcavage founded Security America, Inc., an asset management firm based in Grosse Pointe,

Michigan. Mr. Letcavage worked with Prudential-Bache running a Joint Venture ―High Net Worth Group (a/k/a Security American,
Inc.).

 
Woodrow Clark, PhD
 

Dr. Clark, age 69, is a Director of Premier Holding Corporation. Dr. Clark, a long-time advocate for the environment and
renewable energy, is an internationally recognized author, lecturer, public speaker and advisor specializing in sustainable
communities. Dr. Clark was one of the contributing scientists to the work of the United Nations Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change (UNIPCC) which as an organization was awarded the Nobel Peace Prize in December 2007.

 
In 2004, he founded, and now manages, Clark Strategic Partners (CSP), an environmental and renewable energy consulting

firm using his political-economic expertise in order to guide, advice and implements public and private clients worldwide – specifically
on sustainable smart green communities of all kinds ranging from colleges and universities to shopping malls, office buildings and film
studios. Dr. Clarks’ five books and 50+ peer-reviewed articles reflect that concern for global sustainable communities. His last book is
Global Energy Innovations (Praeger Press, November 2011) that concerns the “green industrial revolution” (GIR). He explains his
work as being the solutions to climate change through public policy, science and technologies, economics and finance. Clark also
teaches graduate courses in these areas throughout the USA and internationally. Currently, Clark is Academic Specialist, UCLA
Provost Office and Cross-Disciplinary Scholars in Science and Technology.

 
Prior to launching CSP, Dr. Clark was Senior Advisor on Renewable Energy, Emerging Technologies, and Finance to

California Governor Gray Davis from 2000-2003. Before that from 1999-2000, he was a Visiting Professor of Science, Technology
and Entrepreneurship at Aalborg University, Denmark, where he was a Fulbright Fellow in 1994. Dr. Clark was the Manager of
Strategic Planning for Technology Transfer at Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory (LLNL) for the University of California and
U.S. Department of Energy, during the 1990s. In 1980, he founded a mass media company in San Francisco, CA, Clark
Communications, specializing in the production and distribution of documentary and educational films focused on “social issues” such
as “sexual harassment”, “health issues” and older workers along with other topics including books from dramatic current events.
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Dr. Clark earned three masters’ degrees from different universities in Illinois and his Ph.D. at University of California,

Berkeley.
 

Lane Harrison
 

Lane Harrison, age 62, is a Director of Premier Holding Corporation. Mr. Harrison is Founder and President of Affluent and
Corporate Insurance Services, Inc. and Capital Preservation Insurance Services, Inc. The firms provide insurance and advanced
consulting services to professional advisors, corporations, small business owners and high net worth families. Mr. Harrison has over
30 years of business consulting and sale/marketing experience. He has lectured extensively to the professional advisor community.
 In addition, Mr. Harrison advised large multi-national corporations such as Bicoastal Corporation, (Formerly Singer Corp.) where he
served as Director, and Bicoastal Financial Corporation, serving as President/Director. Mr. Harrison is a graduate of Salem State
College with a Bachelor of Arts in Social Welfare.

 
Significant Employees

 
None.
 

Family Relationships
 
None.
 

Voting Arrangements
 
None.

 
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

 
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires that our executive officers and directors, and persons who own

more than ten percent of a registered class of our equity securities, file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC.
Executive officers, directors and greater-than-ten percent stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with all Section
16(a) forms they file. Based solely on our review of the copies of the forms received by us and written representations from certain
reporting persons that they have complied with the relevant filing requirements, we believe that, during the year ended December 31,
2013, none of our executive officers, directors and greater-than-ten percent stockholders except Randall Letcavage complied with
Section 16(a) filing requirements.

 
Committees of the Board of Directors
 

We do not have a separately designated audit, compensation or nominating committee of our Board and the functions
customarily delegated to these committees are performed by our full Board. We are not a “listed company” under SEC rules and are
therefore not required to have separate committees comprised of independent directors. The Company has, however, determined
that Bob Kurilko is “independent” as that term is defined in Section 5605 of the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules as required by the
NASDAQ Stock Market.

 
The Board does not have a nominations committee because the Board does not believe that a defined policy with regard to

the consideration of candidates recommended by stockholders is necessary at this time because our Board adequately performs the
functions of such committee. There are no specific minimum qualifications that the Board believes must be met by a candidate
recommended by the Board. Currently, the entire Board decides on nominees, on the recommendation of any member of the Board,
followed by the Board’s review of the candidates’ resumes and interviews of candidates. Based on the information gathered, the
Board then makes a decision on whether to recommend the candidates as nominees for director. We do not pay any fee to any third
party or parties to identify or evaluate or assist in identifying or evaluating potential nominees.

 
The Board does not have an audit committee. However, for certain purposes of the rules and regulations of the SEC and in

accordance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the our Board is deemed to be its audit committee and as such functions as an
audit committee and performs some of the same functions as an audit committee including: (i) selection and oversight of our
independent accountant; (ii) establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints regarding accounting,
internal controls and auditing matters; and (iii) engaging outside advisors. Our Board has determined that its members do not include
a person who is an “audit committee financial expert” within the meaning of the rules and regulations of the SEC. Our Board has
determined that each of its members is able to read and understand fundamental financial statements and has substantial business
experience that results in that member’s financial sophistication. Accordingly, our Board believes that each of its members have the
sufficient knowledge and experience necessary to fulfill the duties and obligations that an audit committee would have.
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The Board does not have a compensation committee because the Board believes that it is not necessary to have a

compensation committee at this time because our Board adequately performs the functions of such committee.
 

Stockholder Communications
 

Our Board has determined not to adopt a formal methodology for communications from stockholders on the belief that any
communication would be brought to the Board’s attention by our sole officer, Randall Letcavage.

 
Meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees
 

Our Board took a number of actions by written consent of all of the directors during the year ended December 31, 2013. Such
actions by the written consent of all directors are, according to Nevada corporate law and our bylaws, valid and effective as if they had
been passed at a meeting of the directors duly called and held. The Board held approximately two general meetings during 2013.
Each director attended at least 75% of all the meetings of the Board in 2013. While the Company has not established a policy with
respect to members of the Board attending annual meetings, each director is encouraged to attend the annual meeting of
stockholders. We did not hold an annual meeting of security holders during our last fiscal year. No compensation has been paid to
our directors for attendance at any meetings during the last fiscal year.

 
Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight
 

We do not separate the roles of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board because we believe that Randall
Letcavage adequately performs such roles. The benefits of Mr. Letcavage’s leadership of the Board stem from his experience in
managing small to medium sized businesses and his involvement in the hydroponics industry, which provide a unique understanding
of our culture and business. Also, serving as both the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board ensures that a constant flow
of Company-related information is available between the Board and our senior management. This flow of communication enables Mr.
Letcavage to identify issues, proposals, strategies and other considerations for future Board discussions and to assume the lead in
many of the resulting discussions during Board meetings. Our Board has responsibility for the oversight of risk management. A
fundamental part of risk management is not only understanding the risks we face and what steps management is taking to manage
those risks, but also understanding what level of risk is appropriate for us. The involvement of the Board in setting our business
strategy is a key part of its assessment of risk management and the determination of what constitutes our appropriate level of risk.
The Board regularly discusses with management our major risk exposures, their potential impact on us and the steps taken to
manage these risks. In addition, the Board may retain, on such terms as determined by the Board, in its sole discretion, independent
legal, financial and other consultants and advisors to advise and assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities.

 
Code of Ethics
 

We have not adopted a corporate code of ethics due to limited funds. We expect to adopt a Code of Ethics during this year
 
 
Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

 
The following table provides information as to cash compensation of all officers of Premier, for each of Premier’s last two fiscal years.

 
SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

 

Name & Position  
Fiscal
Year   Salary ($)  

Stock
Awards

($)   

Option
Awards

($)   

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

Earnings ($)   

Non-Qualified
Deferred

Compensation
Earnings ($)   

All Other
Compensation

($)   
Total

($)  
Randall Letcavage
(1)   2013    240,000   –   –   –   –   66,287   306,281 

CEO & CFO   2012    40,000   –   –   –   –   –   40,000 
Nancy Nguyen   2013    1,500   –   –   –   –   –   1,500 

Former Secretary   2012    74,000   60,000   –   –   –   –   134,000 
Kevin Donovan   2013    –   –   –   –   –   –   – 

Former CEO   2012    82,500   60,000   –   –   –   –   142,500 
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1. During the year ended December 31, 2013, Mr. Letcavage (directly or through related entities) was paid $240,000 as
compensation for his role as our CEO and CFO, and $37,500 for consulting, for a total of $277,500, and $661,319 for contract
labor, including payments to Nexalin Technology specifically for the direct costs related to independent contractors performing
sales lead generation (Nexalin Technology is in an unrelated business to the Company, and Mr. Letcavage is its president),
which was not reported as income.

 2. During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company has paid $66,287 to iCapital Advisory for consulting services, a
related party entity which Mr. Letcavage is the president of the Company.

 
There are no outstanding equity awards or options to officers issued or outstanding.
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Employment Contracts
 

The Company has not entered into any employment agreements.
 
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

 
The following table provides information regarding outstanding options held by our named executive officers as of the end of

our fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.
 

  Option Awards   Stock Awards  

Name   

Number of
Securities
Underlying

Unexercised
Options (#)
Exercisable    

Number of
Securities
Underlying

Unexercised
Options (#)

Unexercisable   

Number of
Securities
Underlying

Unexercised
Unearned

Options (#)    

Option
Exercise
Price ($)   

Option
expiration

date    

Number
of

shares
or units
of stock

that
have not
vested

(#)    

Market
value of
shares
of units
of stock

that
have not
vested

($)    

Equity
incentive plan

awards:
Number of
unearned

shares, units
or other

rights that
have not
vested (#)    

Equity
incentive plan

awards:
Market or

payout value
of unearned
shares, units

or other rights
that have not

vested ($)  
Grisham
Bobby   75,000   75,000   –   0.40   6/30/15   –   –   –   – 

Consultant                                    
Lynch
Thomas   75,000   75,000   –   0.25   6/30/15   –   –   –   – 

Consultant                                    
Clark
Woodrow   75,000   75,000   –   0.25   6/30/15   –   –   –   – 

Director                                     
Clark
Woodrow   100,000   100,000   –   0.10   4/30/15   –   –   –   – 

Director                                     
Lane Harrison  100,000   100,000   –   0.10   4/30/15   –   –   –   – 

Director                                     
 

None of the executive officers listed in the above table exercised options during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.
 

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
 

Name & Position

Fees
Earned or

Paid in
Cash ($)

Stock
Awards

($)

Option
Awards

($)

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

Earnings ($)

Non-Qualified
Deferred

Compensation
Earnings ($)

All Other
Compensation

($) Total ($)
Woodrow Clark, PhD  -    -    10,285  -    -    -    10,285
Lane Harrison  -    -    10,285  -    -    -    10,285
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Item 12. SECURITIES OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

 
The following table presents information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock by the following persons as

of April 11, 2014: (i) each executive officer and director, (ii) all executive officers and directors as a group and (iii) each stockholder
known to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding common stock (not taking into account contractual restrictions
on beneficial ownership.)

 
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or investment

power with respect to securities. Unless otherwise indicated below, to our knowledge, the persons and entities named in the table
have sole voting and sole investment power with respect to all shares beneficially owned, subject to community property laws where
applicable. Shares of our common stock subject to options or warrants that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of
April 11, 2014 are deemed to be outstanding and to be beneficially owned by the person holding the options for the purpose of
computing the percentage ownership of that person but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage
ownership of any other person.

 
The information presented in this table is based on 148,697,016 shares of our common stock outstanding on April 11, 2014.
 

    
Name of

Beneficial Owner
Number of Shares

Beneficially Owned
Percentage
Owned (%)

Notes

Randall Letcavage  6,967,270 4.7% (1)
Woodrow Clark  175,000 *  
Lane Harrison  175,000 *  
All directors and named executive officers as a group (3
individuals)

 7,317,270 4.7%  

    
5% or More Shareholders    
WePower Energy Corp.  8,295,454 5.6%  

_______________
(1) Includes 1,902,451 shares held by Randall Letcavage personally, 2,810,719 shares controlled by him through his

ownership interest in Green Central Holdings, Inc., and 2,254,100 shares controlled by him through his ownership interest in iCapital
Advisory LLC. 

 
Premier is not aware of any person who owns of record, or is known to own beneficially, five percent or more of the

outstanding securities of any class of Premier, other than as set forth above.
 
Changes in Control Arrangements

 
None.

 
Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

 
Transactions with Officers and Directors

 
Other than the transactions described below, since January 1, 2013, there has not been, nor is there currently proposed, any

transaction or series of similar transactions to which we were or will be a party:
 

 Ÿ in which the amount involved exceeds the lesser of $120,000 or one percent of the average of our total assets at year
end for the last two completed fiscal years; and

 Ÿ in which any director, executive officer, stockholder who beneficially owns 5% or more of our common stock or any
member of their immediate family had or will have a direct or indirect material interest.

 
During the year ended December 31, 2013, Mr. Letcavage (directly or through related entities) was paid $300,500 as

compensation for his role as our CEO and CFO, and $37,500 for consulting, for a total of $338,000.
 
Reimbursements paid to Mr. Letcavage for out-of-pocket expenses included $93,306 for documented office expenses, and

$661,319 for contract labor, including payments to Nexalin Technology specifically for the direct costs related to independent
contractors performing sales lead generation (Nexalin Technology is in an unrelated business to the Company, and Mr. Letcavage is
its president), for a total of $754,625.
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Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

 
Audit fees
 
Effective April 9, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company dismissed M&K CPAS, PLLC as its independent registered

accounting firm and engaged Anton & Chia LLP (“A&C”) to serve as its independent registered accounting firm. There were no
disagreements with M&K CPAS, PLLC on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing
scope or procedure during this time that, if not resolved to the satisfaction of M&K CPAS, PLLC, would have caused M&K CPAS,
PLLC to make a reference to the subject matter of any such disagreement in connection with its report on Premier Holding
Corporation’s consolidated financial statements

 
The aggregate fees billed for the two most recently completed fiscal periods ended December 31, 2013 and December 31,

2012 for professional services rendered by Anton & Chia LLP (“A&C”) and M&K CPAS, PLLC, respectively for the audit of our annual
consolidated financial statements, quarterly reviews of our interim consolidated financial statements and services normally provided
by the independent accountant in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for these fiscal periods were as
follows:

 

Fees  

Year Ended
December 31,

2013   

Year Ended
December 31,

2012  
Audit Fees and Audit Related Fees  $ 27,100  $ 14,250 
Tax Fees   –   – 
All Other Fees   –   – 
Total  $ 27,100  $ 14,250 

 
In the above table, “audit fees” are fees billed by our company’s external auditor for services provided in auditing our

company’s annual consolidated financial statements for the subject year. “Audit-related fees” are fees not included in audit fees that
are billed by the auditor for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit review of our
Company’s consolidated financial statements. “Tax fees” are fees billed by the auditor for professional services rendered for tax
compliance, tax advice and tax planning. “All other fees” are fees billed by the auditor for products and services not included in the
foregoing categories.
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Item 15. EXHIBITS
 
No. Description  Incorporation By Reference

3.1 Articles of Incorporation, as amended  Filed on June 21, 2010 and incorporated
herein by reference.

3.2 Bylaws  Filed on June 21, 2010 and incorporated
herein by reference.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

 Filed herewith.

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to Section 906 Certifications under Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

 Filed herewith.

10.1 The Power Company residential supplier contract  Filed herewith.
10.2 The Power Company Commercial supplier contract  Filed herewith.
10.3 The Power Company residential customer contract  Filed herewith.
10.4 The Power Company commercial customer contract  Filed herewith.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document  Filed herewith.
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema  Filed herewith.
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase  Filed herewith.
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase  Filed herewith.
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase  Filed herewith.
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase  Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES
 
 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

 
Date: July 14, 2015 Premier Holding Corporation

 
/s/ Randall Letcavage
Randall Letcavage
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chairman of the
Board of Directors, Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer.
 

 
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

 
Date: July 14, 2015 /s/ Randall Letcavage

Randall Letcavage
Chairman of the Board of Directors

 
Date: July 14, 2015

 
/s/ Woodrow Clark
Woodrow Clark
Director

 
Date: July 14, 2015

 
/s/ Lane Harrison
Lane Harrison
Director
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Exhibit 10.1
 
 

Broker Energy Agreement
 

Redacted 
 
This Channel Partner Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into this ____ day of _____________, 2015 by and between ABC
Supplier Energy LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company (ABC Supplier), and ________________________________ (“Channel
Partner”).

 
WHEREAS, ABC Supplier is a provider of energy management services, including demand management services and energy
efficiency services (collectively referred to herein as “Services”), together with the retail supply of electricity and natural gas
(collectively referred to herein as “Supply Services”); and,

 
WHEREAS, Channel Partner acts a representative for potential customers to obtain Services and Supply Services from vendors such
as ABC Supplier;

 
WHEREAS, Channel Partner has agreed to present ABC Supplier’s offer for Services and/or Supply Services to Customers
represented by Channel Partner (each, a “Customer,” and, collectively, the “Customers”); and

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt, sufficiency and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

 
1. Channel Partner’s Responsibilities. Channel Partner shall submit all Customer information requested by ABC Supplier in order
to present Customer with ABC Supplier’s most suitable product offerings.

 
Term. The term of this Agreement shall be one (1) year, commencing on the executed date above, and expiring one (1) year after
execution of the Agreement (the “Term”); provided that Channel Partner shall be bound by the terms hereof with respect to any
Customer who enters into an agreement with ABC Supplier (the “Customer Agreement”) during the Term, through and including the
expiration or earlier termination of such Customer Agreement. This Channel Partner Agreement shall automatically renew for
consecutive one--year terms unless terminated pursuant to Section 14 or notices given to Channel Partner five (5) days prior to the
expiration of the term.
 
2 . Compensation. As compensation in full for the performance of any services by Channel Partner in accordance with this
Agreement, ABC Supplier shall pay to the Channel Partner the commissions set forth in the Contract Submission Form, and
approved by ABC Supplier, (the “Contract Submission Form”), substantially in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto. The Contract
Submission Form may be modified at any time by ABC Supplier. Commission Limits, attached hereto as Exhibit B, outline maximum
commission amounts by classification and may be changed, for future deals, at any time by ABC Supplier. Channel Partner shall be
paid compensation for the Services and Supply secured by Channel Partner for Customer in accordance with the terms of the current
agreement between Channel Partner and ABC Supplier at the time of customer executing the agreement. In the event that an
agreement between Channel Partner and ABC Supplier is not in effect for the Services and Supply Services secured by Channel
Partner for Customer, Channel Partner shall be paid all compensation owed by ABC Supplier at the time the agreement is terminated,
in accordance with the terms attached in Exhibit C.
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(a) If a Customer becomes past due and is terminated for nonpayment or Customer’s account is assigned to ABC Supplier’s
Collections or Legal Departments, all Channel Partner commissions for that Customer shall be suspended until such time as
Customer is in good standing with ABC Supplier. Commission payments of a residual nature occur monthly on the 15th of each
month and are subject to a monthly minimum accrual amount of $500. Commissions owed to a Channel Partner of less than $500 will
be held by ABC Supplier and accrue until the commissions owed to that Channel Partner meets or exceeds the $500 threshold, at
which time they will be distributed to Channel Partner in accordance with standard ABC Supplier practices. Only “active” Channel
Partners, as defined in Sub Section C, are eligible to receive commissions.
 
(b) If a customer contract is found to be altered in any way by either the Customer or Channel Partner, no commission will be paid on
the customer account to the Channel Partner.
 
(c) Channel Partner must submit a new deal or “active re--enrollment or renewal” every ninety (90) days to remain an ‘active’ Channel
Partner. For the purposes of this agreement, “active re-- enrollment or renewal” means obtaining a customer’s specific authorization
to extend or renew the Customers Agreement with ABC Supplier to provide “services” or “supply.”
 
3. Independent Contractor. Channel Partner is and shall remain an independent contractor and shall not be an employee of ABC
Supplier. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to imply a joint venture, partnership, association principal--Channel Partner,
employer--employee, or fiduciary relationship between ABC Supplier and Channel Partner. Channel Partner will be responsible for all
taxes owed or amounts paid under this Agreement. Channel Partner shall not have the authority to bind ABC Supplier in any way and
shall not make any representations to the contrary. Channel Partner does not act in the capacity of a third--party Marketing
Representative on behalf of ABC Supplier.
 
4. Territory. This Agreement does not confer on Channel Partner exclusive representation of ABC Supplier in any territory, and ABC
Supplier may appoint other employees, consultants or Channel Partners in the same, or any other, territory.
 
5. Representations and Warranties. Channel Partner represents and warrants to ABC Supplier as follows:
 
(a) The information supplied by Channel Partner to ABC Supplier is accurate, complete and

correct.

(b) Channel Partner shall not engage in any activity that involves a conflict of interest with ABC Supplier or any of its Customers,
whether or not willful, which has a substantial adverse effect on ABC Supplier or any of its Customers.

(c) In the event that Channel Partner is an entity, Channel Partner is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
laws of the jurisdiction of its formation, and has the legal right, power and authority to conduct its business and execute and
perform its obligations hereunder.

(d) Channel Partner has never been (i) a shareholder, member, or partner in an entity which was finally adjudicated to be bankrupt
or insolvent or for which a general assignment for the benefit of creditors was made; (ii) convicted for any crime or misdemeanor;
(iii) the subject of an investigation by any state, federal or other governmental or quasi--governmental agency based on an
alleged violation of its laws, rules or regulations; or (iv) involved in any other action or proceeding which could have any adverse
effect on ABC Supplier or ABC Supplier’s business, or performance by Channel Partner under this Agreement.

(e) Channel Partner shall at all times comply with any and all laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
and

requirements related to the sale of the Services or Supply
Services.

(f) Channel Partner agrees to abide by all policies, practices, procedures and guidelines adopted by ABC
Supplier.

 
6. Confidentiality and Non--Solicitation.

 
(a) Channel Partner agrees to not divulge or communicate to any person or entity (other than to a person bound by confidentiality

obligations similar to those contained herein) or use to the detriment of the Company or for the benefit of any other person or
entity, any such data or

 information.

(b) Channel Partner agrees that he or she will not, during the effective period of this agreement and for a period of twenty--four (24)
months following the termination of this agreement, solicit, induce or otherwise interfere with ABC Supplier’s relationship with its’
employees, consultants, agents, Channel Partners or representatives.

(c) Channel Partner agrees that he or she will not, for his or her own account or for the account of any other person or entity,
interfere with the Company's relationships with any of its customers currently under contract, for the duration of the contract.
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(d) Channel Partner acknowledges that a violation of this Section could cause irreparable injury to the Company which would be
difficult or impossible to measure and agrees that money damages for any breach thereof will be an inadequate remedy and that,
therefore, the Company shall be entitled, in addition to money damages, to specific performance, injunction and/or any other
mode of equitable relief to enforce its rights hereunder.
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7. Publicity. No informational material, advertising circulars, radio or television broadcast or otheradvertising shall be published or
circulated by Channel Partner without ABC Supplier’s prior written consent.

 
8. Conduct of Business. Channel Partner’s conduct shall be fair, honest, lawful and courteous, and shall not adversely affect the
business, goodwill, or reputation of ABC Supplier.

 
9 . Assignment. This agreement is freely transferrable and assignable by ABC Supplier to any future successor or assign, as
determined by ABC Supplier. Channel Partner shall not assign, delegate, subcontract or otherwise transfer this Agreement or any of
its rights or obligations without the written approval of ABC Supplier or ABC Supplier’s assignees or successors. Any attempt to do so
without the approval of ABC Supplier shall be void. Upon assignment of this agreement to ABC Supplier, the commission structure
will change, as indicated in Section 3 of this agreement.
 
10. Indemnification. Channel Partner (in this context, the “indemnifying party”) agrees to indemnify, defend and hold ABC Supplier
and its members, managers, officers, directors, employees, consultants and/or Channel Partners (in this context, the “indemnified
party”) harmless from any and all claims, actions, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and
expenses arising out of or relating to this Agreement (including any schedules or exhibits hereto) with respect to (i) any and all acts or
omissions of the indemnifying party occurring prior to the effective date of this Agreement, (ii) actions or positions taken by the
indemnifying party, whether prior to or during the term of this Agreement, which are relied upon by the indemnified party or which form
the basis for any services of the indemnified party hereunder, (iii) any indemnifying party instruction, approval, election, decision,
action, inaction, breach, omission or nonperformance relating to the Agreement, or (iv) any information or data provided to the
indemnified party.
 
11. Non--Waiver and Severability. No act of forbearance or toleration on the part of ABC Supplier in favor of Channel Partner with
respect to any provision of this Agreement, either expressed or implied, shall be construed as a waiver by ABC Supplier of any of its
rights hereunder. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this
Agreement shall continue to be binding and of full force and effect.
 
12. Suspension. ABC Supplier reserves the right to suspend all or any part of Channel Partner’s activities under this Agreement, if
Channel Partner has breached or appears to have breached, in ABC Supplier’s reasonable opinion, any provision set forth in this
Agreement. ABC Supplier will notify Channel Partner in writing of any suspension or subsequent reinstatement.
 
13. Termination. This Agreement shall only be terminated with cause. Upon the termination of this Agreement with cause, no
commissions or other compensation or allowances, accrued or otherwise, shall be payable to Channel Partner. For the purposes of
this Agreement, the term “with cause” is defined as any violation by Channel Partner of the terms of this Agreement including, but not
limited to, failure to maintain an active status or act in non--compliance with any State or Federal regulation.
 
14. Captions. The captions and sub--captions contained in this Agreement are for the purpose of convenience and shall not be
construed as limiting or expanding the provisions hereof.

 
15. Governing Law; Construction. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without
giving effect to any conflicts of law principles that might otherwise be applicable.
 
16. Notices. All notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and may be delivered in person or may be sent by
registered, certified or express mail, with postage prepaid, return receipt requested, via overnight delivery by a reputable courier, or
may be transmitted by facsimile, addressed as follows:
 
If to ABC Supplier: If to Channel Partner:
  
ABC Supplier Energy  
  
Attention: __________ Attention:__________
Telephone:__________
Facsimile: XXX-XXX-XXXX

Telephone:__________
Facsimile: XXX-XXX-XXXXX

 
 
Or to such other address as shall, from time to time, be supplied in writing by any party to the other. Notice sent by registered,
certified or express mail, post--paid, with return receipt requested, addressed as above provided, shall be deemed given three (3)
days after deposit of same in the United States mail. If any notice is sent via facsimile, the same shall be deemed served or delivered
within forty--eight (48) hours after the transmission thereof. If the notice is sent via overnight courier, the same shall be deemed
served or delivered within thirty--six (36) hours of deposit with such overnight courier. Any notice or other document sent or delivered
in any other manner shall be effective only if and when received.
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17. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which,
when taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument, binding on the parties, and the signature of any party to any
counterpart shall be deemed a signature to, and may be appended to, any other counterpart.
 
18. Further Assurances. The parties hereto agree that they will cooperate with each other and will execute and deliver, or cause to
be delivered, all such other instruments, and will take all such other actions, as either party hereto may reasonably request from time
to time in order to effectuate the provisions and purposes hereof.
 
19. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with any and all exhibits or schedules hereto, supersede all previous agreements,
any oral representations or understandings, and constitute the entire agreement between the parties.
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date and year first above
written.

 
 
ABC SUPPLIER ENERGY,
a State Limited Liability Corporation

CHANNEL PARTNER:

  
  
Signed:__________ Signed:__________
Name:___________ Name:___________
Title: ___________ Title: ___________
  
 
 

4

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
Exhibit A – Contract Submission Form

 
(Contract Submission Form Attached in Email)

 
Exhibit B – Commission Maximum by Product
 

Payments to Channel Partner shall at no time exceed the listed amount or a 1:1 split will apply
ABC Supplier Product: Residual Fees:
Electricity  Supply    $0.005/kWh  
Natural  Gas    Supply    $0.05/therm  
 
*From time to time, ABC Supplier may distribute FACT SHEETS that will define new product offerings and any commission
structure incentives or variations pertaining to that new product or any existing product.
 
 
 
Contact Information:
 
Channel  Partner    Company    Name:            
Channel  Partner    Contact    Person:            
 
 
Channel Partner Address:

        
        
        
        

Channel  Partner    Contact    Phone:            
Channel Partner Phone (2):         
Channel  Partner    Fax:            
Channel  Partner    Email    Address:            
Channel Partner Email Address (2):         
Channel  Partner    Tax    ID:            
Channel  Partner    Bank    Institution:            
Account  Number:            
Routing  Number:    *            
Channel  Partner's    ABC Supplier    Energy    Contact:            
 
State(s) Channel Partner Will Be Marketing:

        
        

 
 
*Please attach a photocopy of a voided check to ensure proper payment processing.
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Exhibit C – Payment Terms
 
AMOUNT: The amount to be paid by ABC Supplier Energy to Channel Partner shall be determined by applying the following
calculation to the Broker Fee Rate provided for in Attachment B, the Customer Addition Addendum.
 
CALCULATION OF FEE: Broker Fee Rate multiplied by the Customer’s actual monthly number of therms/kWh of consumption as
determined by the Customer’s applicable local distribution utility company (“LDC”); provided that ABC Supplier Energy reserves the
right, at its sole option, to calculate the current Fee (or to adjust the current Fee based upon a reconciliation with a previous Fee
payment) using the number of therms/kWh actually consumed, billed to, and/or the amount actually collected from, Customers during
a payment period; and provided further that ABC Supplier Energy reserves the right to withhold payment of the final Broker's Fee until
payment is tendered in full to ABC Supplier Energy or the LDC carrier (whichever applies)and all consumption data relating to such
payment has been received by ABC Supplier Energy, not to exceed 90 days from contract termination.
 
PAYMENT SCHEDULE: Commissions are paid only after customer has remitted payment to ABC Supplier Energy or the LDC carrier
(whichever applies). Commission payments are subject to meter read, start dates, payment terms, billing cycles and receipt of
payment, therefore, it may take 45--60 days to receive commission payments after enrollment of a customer.
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Exhibit 10.2
 
 

BROKER AGREEMENT
 

THIS BROKER AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made effective as of the , ("Effective Date") by and between
 
 

xxxxxxxxxxxxx
 
 

and collectively referred to as
"Company") and The Power Company USA, LLC a limited liability company organized under the laws of Illinois having its principal
office at 214 W Ohio Street, Suite 3, Chicago, IL 60654 ("Broker"). Company and Broker are sometimes individually referred to herein
as "Party" or collectively as the "Parties".

 
WITNESSETH:

 
WHEREAS, Company is engaged in the business of purchasing, managing and selling electricity, natural gas and other

related energy services ("Energy") to business, commercial and industrial end-use customers ("Customers"); and
 
WHEREAS, Broker is in the business of finding potential Customers which may be interested in purchasing Energy from

Company in the territories where Company conducts business and further identified on Schedule C (the "Broker Territory"), as
amended from time to time by the mutual consent of the Parties, and subject to the negotiation of a definitive agreement ("Customer
Agreement"); and

 
WHEREAS, the Parties wish to set forth certain understandings pertaining to the services to be provided by Broker under this

Agreement ("Services");
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, and in consideration of their respective

obligations herein set forth, covenant and agree as follows:
 

Article 1. Relationship.
 
1.1 Independent Contractor.
 

(a) Broker is an independent contractor with respect to all aspects of this Agreement. Broker and its principles, officers,
directors and employees are not employees, agents or servants of Company. Broker shall have no authority and shall not represent
that it has the authority to execute contractual documents or any other documents on behalf of Company or otherwise assume or
incur any obligation or make any representations of any kind in the name of Company. NOTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT SHALL
CREATE OR BE CONSTRUED TO CREATE AN AGENCY, PARTNERSHIP, JOINT VENTURE OR ANY SIMILAR LEGAL
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN BROKER AND COMPANY.
 
________________
* Information redacted pursuant to a confidential treatment request and submitted separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.
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(b) Broker shall be solely responsible for payment of all state, federal, and local taxes, including income taxes, estimated
taxes, social security or other taxes imposed upon the receipt of the Commission for Broker or any employees of Broker.

 
1.2 Training, Support and Marketing Material.
 

(a) Company will provide training, support, and Marketing Materials to Broker to assist Broker in providing the Services.
Company will periodically provide Broker with training O n topics such as Company's business policies and procedures, Energy
products ("Products"), or any other relevant topic in its discretion. Broker shall use commercially reasonable efforts to attend all
training, either in person or via electronic means. Failure to complete all required training shall be considered an event of default
subject to Section 4.2(vi) below.

 
(b) Company shall provide Broker with authorized marketing and business materials for Broker's use in performing the

Services ("Marketing Materials"). The Marketing Materials shall be accessible to Broker on the channel partner resource center
website ("Website"). Access to the Website will be communicated to the Broker upon execution of this Agreement and Broker shall be
responsible for accessing the Website regularly to ensure that Broker is using the current Marketing Materials. Broker may create and
use its own marketing materials, provided, however, that any such materials that address, in any manner, Company and/or the
Products, shall be approved in writing by Company prior to distribution.

 
(c) Company may, at any time, amend, rescind, or replace the Marketing Materials and/or its approval for the Broker created

marketing materials and Broker shall immediately cease utilizing the Marketing Materials and/or Broker marketing material as
appropriate.

 
(d) Nothing herein shall be construed as providing Broker with a right or license to utilize the names, trademarks or intellectual

property of Company. Any misuse by Broker of any Company names, trademarks or intellectual property shall be a breach of this
Agreement and Company shall have all remedies available under this Agreement, and at a law, to protect its names, trademarks or
intellectual property.

 
Article 2. Responsibilities and Duties.
 
2.1 Broker Responsibilities. Broker hereby covenants to undertake the following:
 

(a) Adhere to those fiduciary standards, ethical practices, and standards of care and competence which are customary for
professionals engaged in rendering the services described herein, and as well as adhering to Direct Energy's Statement of Business
Ethics, attached hereto as Schedule A;

 
(b) Comply with all Laws applicable to the rendering of Services in general and shall procure all applicable licenses and

permits necessary for the fulfillment of the Services. This includes, but is not limited to, compliance with (I) the Federal Telephone
Consumer Protection Act; (2) the Federal Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act; (3) the Federal Trade Commission's
Telemarketing Sales Rules; (4) the Do Not Call Implementation Act of 2003; (5)

 
any rules or requirements of a host utility; and (6) all other applicable laws, rules, regulations, in performing the Services. For the
purposes of this Agreement, "Laws" means all laws, statutes, regulations, ordinances, rules, directives, ethical guidelines, consumer
protection rules, and common law and any host utility requirements relevant or applicable to the Services. Broker shall immediately
notify Company in writing upon receipt of any complaint, allegation or claim by any person, entity, actual or prospective customer, or
governmental agency against Broker threatening legal action, enforcement, or discipline, including any claim for loss or damages;
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(c) Broker shall disclose to Customer that (i) Broker is an agent of Customer only and not an agent of Company; (ii) Broker will

receive a Commission from Customer that will be paid to Broker by Company out of payments actually received by Company under
the Customer Agreement; and (iii) Company is not liable or responsible for any act or omission of Broker to the Customer or
otherwise;

 
(d) Broker shall not assume or create any obligation or responsibility, express or implied, on behalf of, or in the name of

Company and shall not bind Company in any manner;
 
(e) When reasonably requested by Company, Broker will assist in the resolution of Customer controversies or disputes and

the collection of past due accounts;
 

Adhere to any and all policies and procedures that may be instituted or amended from time to time by Company
related to the performance of the Services; and

 
(g) Provide (i) Customer with the Customer Agreement; (ii) Company with all Customer information requested by Company,

including but not limited to billing data, credit information, and consumption data in compliance with the procedure established by
Company provided on the Website; and (iii) Company with the Customer Agreement, signed by the potential Customer, for final
approval and execution. Broker shall not have authority to negotiate the terms and conditions, or amend or modify, the Customer
Agreement. Company reserves the right to reject any Customer Agreement presented by Broker without explanation. Broker
recognizes that a Customer Agreement between Company and a Customer governs the relationship between the Customer and
Company, and that except for the commission set forth herein, Broker is not a party or intended third-party beneficiary of any such
agreements.

 
2.2 Company Responsibilities. Company hereby covenants to undertake the following:
 

(a) Prepare price quotes within a reasonable amount of time from Broker's request and provide Broker with the Customer
Agreement, as it may be amended or modified from time-to-time at Company's sole discretion, and any additional documents to be
executed by Customer;

 
(b) Make Company personnel available to meet with Customers when reasonably requested by Broker. Provide telephone

support assistance, when reasonably requested, during normal and regular business hours to answer questions relating to Company
and the Products; and

 
(c) Comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations.
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Article 3. Compensation.
 
3.1 Commission. Company will pay Broker a fee for Customers identified by Broker ("Commission") in accordance with the
Commission calculation set forth on Schedule B, attached, if and only if the Customer and Company execute a Customer Agreement.
The Commission is based on the kilowatt-hour or MMBtu of Energy, as applicable, delivered by Company during the term of each
Customer Agreement, or during subsequent renewals upon the conditions as described below. No payment will be made to Broker
until Broker has provided Company with a completed and properly signed W-9.
 
3.2 Renewals. Company will pay a Commission for the renewal of a Customer Agreement, if and only if, the Broker has played an
active role in signing of the renewal and can demonstrate that it continues to represent the Customer for any renewed Customer
Agreement. By way of example only, the following activities would be sufficient to satisfy this requirement: (i) requesting price quotes
for Customer, (ii) obtaining usage and other information from Customer and providing same to Company for pricing purposes, and (iii)
correspondence with the Customer and Company regarding the renewal of the Customer Agreement. If, as determined in Company's
sole discretion, Broker does not initiate such activity within at least forty-five (45) days prior to the expiration of the Customer
Agreement, Company may pursue renewal of the Customer independent of Broker and no payment of Commission shall be due to
Broker as a result of such renewal.
 
3.3 Payment of Commissions.
 

(a) Except as provided below in Section 3.3(b), Commissions payable to Broker shall be payable on or before the 30th day
following the last day of each calendar month in which Company receives full payment of each invoice that has been submitted to
Customer for payment. if only a partial payment is received from Customer, Broker shall be paid its Commission once full payment on
all outstanding invoices has been received by Company. Company shall not pay any Commission while a Customer is more than
forty-five (45) clays delinquent on any outstanding invoice(s) and/or upon Customer's filing for bankruptcy. Under no circumstances
shall Broker be entitled to any Commissions on any invoice for which Company does not receive payment. Company reserves the
right to independently offer additional services and/or products to Customers without paying additional fees to Broker.

 
(b) If Company becomes involved in any litigation or other disputes with a Customer as a result of Broker's actions or

inactions, Company shall be entitled to recover the costs of such litigation or disputes from Broker and shall be specifically authorized
to withhold any future Commission payment until such costs are recovered. Company shall have the right to collect and/or credit any
overpayment of Commissions against any future Commissions.

 
(c) If Customer and Company amend the terms of a Customer Agreement in a manner that alters the pricing, the Commission

structure may also be amended prospectively to economically justify the amendments made to the Customer Agreement. In such
cases, Company and Broker agree to use their best efforts to agree upon mutually acceptable Commission rate.

 
(d) Broker and Company agree that Broker may have solicited customers on behalf of Company prior to the Effective Date of

this Agreement for which Broker may be entitled to a payment. Broker and Company hereby agree that such transactions shall be
subject to and governed by the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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3.4 Payment of Commission upon the Termination of this Agreement.
 

(a) If this Agreement is terminated for cause in accordance with Section 4.2, Broker shall not be entitled to, and shall not
receive, any further or future Commissions or any other payments of any kind after the date of termination.

 
(b) If this Agreement is terminated by either Party in accordance with Section 4.1, Company will continue to pay Commissions

to Broker or provide Broker with a one-time payout amount, such form of payment determinable in Company's sole discretion,
provided however, Company may discontinue the payment of Commissions if Broker: (i) violates any Laws; (ii) engages in false or
misleading representations regarding Company or its Products; (iii) is charged with or convicted of a felony; (iv) takes any action or
makes any statement that would impugn the business reputation of Company or (v) violates its confidentiality obligations under this
Agreement.

 
3.5 Commission Statements. Company shall provide Broker with a monthly Commission statement evidencing the volume of
Energy sold and the Commission due under each Customer Agreement. Broker shall have ninety (90) days from the date of the
Commission statement to dispute in writing to Company of any discrepancies. Any discrepancies that are not raised within ninety (90)
days from the date of the Commission statement shall be waived by Broker.
 
Article 4. Term and Termination.
 
4.1 Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue in effect for one month, and will
automatically be extended for consecutive one-month period(s), unless and until terminated by either Party by giving the other Party
three (3) days prior written notice. This Agreement and the payments hereunder will not survive Broker's death or permanent
disability.
 
4.2 Termination for Cause by Company. Company may terminate this Agreement immediately if Broker: (i) violates any Laws; (ii)
engages in false or misleading representations regarding Company or its Products; (iii) is charged with or convicted of a felony; (iv)
takes any action or makes any statement that would impugn the business reputation of Company; (v) violates its confidentiality
obligations under this Agreement; (vi) is in default of any material obligations or duties under this Agreement and fails to cure such
default within five (5) (lays following the receipt of written notice from Company describing the default; or (vii) files bankruptcy, goes
into compulsory liquidation, or makes an assignment of this Agreement for the benefit of creditors.
 
4.3 Termination of Customer Agreement. If at any time following execution of this Agreement, there exists an event of default,
change in law, regulatory action, judicial action or any other event or circumstance that results in termination of the Customer
Agreement by Company or Customer, then Company's obligations arising from the terminated Customer Agreement pursuant to this
Agreement shall also terminate and Company shall be released from any and all subsequent payment obligations to Broker relating to
the terminated Customer Agreement.
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Article 5. Confidentiality.
 
5.1 Confidential Information. Broker acknowledges and agrees that Company has developed and owns and controls certain
confidential and proprietary business information relating to its business and the Products, including, without limitation, ideas,
inventions, technical information, policies, procedures, processes, business and financial models and projections, marketing and
business materials, price lists, advertising literature, customer lists, customer information and all other confidential business
information and trade secrets owned and controlled by Company and Company acknowledges and agrees that Broker has developed
and owns and controls certain confidential and proprietary business information relating to its business (collectively and individually
the "Confidential Information").
 
5.2 Secrecy Commitment. For so long as this Agreement is in effect and for a period of two (2) years after the expiration or earlier
termination of this Agreement, Broker shall keep secret and confidential, and shall not, either directly or indirectly, make known,
divulge, reveal, furnish, make available or use any Confidential Information gained by Broker pursuant to this Agreement. In the event
Broker is a corporation, partnership, limited partnership or other entity, Broker agrees to cause all principal owners, officers, partners,
shareholders and key sales people and individuals employed by Broker agree to be bound by the terms of this Confidentiality
provision. If disclosure is sought through process of a court, or a governmental agency, Broker shall resist disclosure through all
reasonable means and shall immediately notify Company to allow it the opportunity to participate in such proceedings.
 
5.3 Confidential Information of Others. Broker understands and agrees that Company does not request and will not accept
confidential information of others in the possession of or known by Broker at any time (except with respect to Customers when
assisting in the credit process). Broker will not offer to Company and will refuse any request of any Company employee for the
disclosure of confidential information belonging to a third party. Should any such request be made or if any inadvertent disclosure is
made by Broker, Broker shall immediately inform Company.
 
5.4 Return of Documents. The receiving Party shall turn over to the disclosing Party, upon demand, all Confidential Information and
any and all documents or other writings and recorded materials of any kind embodying the Confidential Information. Neither Party
shall copy or reproduce in whole or in part any such writing or recorded material without the prior written consent of the disclosing
Party.
 
5.5 Injunctive Relief. If either Party commits a breach, or threatens to commit a breach, of any of the provisions of this Article 5, the
non-breaching Party shall have the right and remedy to have the provisions of this Article 5 specifically enforced by any court having
equity jurisdiction and/or the right to obtain injunctive relief. The right and remedy enumerated in the preceding sentence shall be in
addition to, and not in lieu of, any rights and remedies available to the Parties at law or in equity.
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Article 6. Representations and Warranties.

 
6.1 Broker Representations and Warranties. Broker represents and warrants and covenants to Company the following:
 
(a) it is currently in compliance with all applicable Laws and is not currently, and has not been subject to or threatened with any
written complaint, enforcement action, disciplinary proceeding or lawsuit by any governmental entity or private party alleging a
violation of a liability under any Law;
 
(b) it shall not take any action that would violate any Law, contract, agreement, including any non-competition agreement, in
performing the Services;
 
(c) it shall not act in any manner that could cause Company's reputation or good will to be impaired;
 
(d) it shall not utilize agents to perform the Services without the prior written consent of Company, such consent to be granted in
Company's sole discretion. Further, if agents are engaged by Broker to perform the Services with Company's consent, it shall ensure
such agents comply fully with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and failure to do so shall constitute an event of default
under Section 4.2(vi);
 
(e) it has not entered into any agreement with any person, firm or corporation that would obligate Company to pay any commission,
or "finder's fee" to any third party in connection with a Customer Agreement;
 
(f) it is not subject to any non-competition agreement that would be violated upon Broker's execution of this Agreement; and
 
(g) it now has and will use all reasonable efforts to maintain in full force and effect all consents, licenses and authorizations of any
governmental or other authority that is required to be obtained by it with respect to this Agreement and will use all reasonable efforts
to obtain any that may become necessary in the future.
 

Article 7. Miscellaneous.
 
7.1 Indemnification. Broker shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Company, and all of its officers, directors, and employees,
from and against all liabilities, claims, damages and expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorney fees and out-of-
pocket expenses) (collectively referred to as "Losses") incurred by Company as a result of, arising out of, or in connection with, (i)
any misrepresentations by Broker, its agents or employees, (i) a breach of this Agreement, or (iii) any negligent, fraudulent or
intentional acts or omissions by Broker, its agents or employees; or (iv) any claim which arises out of or is based upon any regulatory
actions, complaints or alleged violation of Laws or (v) any claim that any party other than Broker is entitled to payment hereunder.
 
7.2 No Employee Solicitation. Broker agrees for the term of this Agreement and for two years subsequent to the termination of this
Agreement, that it will not employ any Company employee without the prior written consent of Company and will not solicit or attempt
to induce any Company employee to become its employee.
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7.3 Limitation of Liability and Damages. No Party shall be liable hereunder to the other Party or any third party (a) for special,
indirect, incidental or consequential (including lost profits) damages, provided, however, that such limitations shall not apply to
damages arising from Broker's breach of Article 5 and Sections 2.1(b), 7.1 and 7.2 or (b) under any circumstances for any breach
(alleged or actual) by Customer of the Customer Agreement. In no event will Company's liability under this Agreement exceed the
amount of payments due Broker hereunder for the energy commodity delivered to and paid for by Customer.
 
7.4 Dispute Resolution. Any disputes by the Parties shall be resolved through good faith negotiation through the Parties' authorized
representatives. Any dispute not resolved within thirty (30) (lays of initial written notification of such dispute may be forwarded to the
Parties' counsel for resolution.
 
7.5 Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective permitted
successors and permitted assigns. Broker may not assign, delegate, or otherwise transfer any of its rights or obligations under the
Agreement, including any assignment of Commissions, without the prior written consent of Company, which consent may be withheld
or denied in Company's sole discretion. Any transfer or assignment in violation of this paragraph shall be null and void.
 
7.6 Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and shall be construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New York without regard to principles of conflicts of law.
 
7.7 Notices and Correspondence. Any notice or other document to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be delivered to
the address specified on the signature page. Notice sent by facsimile shall be deemed to have been received by the close of the
business clay on which it was transmitted or such earlier time as is confirmed by the receiving party. Notice delivered by courier shall
be deemed to have been received upon receipt. Notice delivered by mail shall be sent via certified mail service deemed to have been
received at the end of the fifth business day after the date of mailing by prepaid first class mail.
 
7.8 Non-Waiver. No waiver by either Party hereto of any one or more defaults by the other in the performance of any of the
provisions of this Agreement shall operate or be construed as a waiver of any other default or defaults whether of a like kind or a
different nature.
 
7.9 Exclusion of Third Party Rights. The provisions of this Agreement shall not impart rights enforceable by any person, firm or
organization not a Party to this Agreement or a permitted successor or assignee of a Party.
 
7.10 Headings. The headings used for the Articles and Sections herein are for convenience and reference purposes only and shall in
no way affect the meaning or interpretation of the provisions of this Agreement.
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7.11 Severability. If any clause, sentence, paragraph or part of this Agreement should be declared or rendered unlawful by a court or
regulatory agency of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.
 
7.12 Amendments. No termination, revocation, waiver, modification or amendment of this Agreement shall be binding upon the
Parties unless in writing and signed by all Parties.
 
7.13 Survival. Termination or expiration of this Agreement shall not relieve either Party of its obligations set forth in Article 3, Article 4,
Article 5, Section 7.1 and Section 7.2, and any and all other provisions of this Agreement which by their terms shall reasonably be
construed to survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.
 
7.14 Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement and understanding between the Parties regarding the
subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior understandings and agreements between them respecting the subject matter of this
Agreement and there are no other representations, agreements or understandings, oral or written, express or implied, between the
Parties relating thereto.
 
7.15 Authority to Contract. Each Party hereto warrants that it has full authority to enter into this Agreement and that such action has
been duly authorized in accordance with such Party's articles of incorporation, by-laws or other applicable organizational documents
and procedures.
 
7.16 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more than one counterpart and each executed counterpart shall be
considered an original, provided that such counterpart is delivered to the other Party by facsimile, mail, courier or electronic mail, all
of which together shall constitute one and the same Agreement.
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Each of the parties represents and warrants that the signatory below has authority to sign this Agreement on its behalf.
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed.
 
 
 
 
THE POWER COMPANY USA, LLC
 
By:
 
Name:
 
Title:
 
Date:
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Exhibit 10.3
 

CONFIDENTIAL
 

ABC ENERGY SERVICES L.L.C.
ELECTRIC SALES AGREEMENT

 
 

This Electric Sales Agreement ("Agreement"), number 12345 (agreement ID) is entered into between ABC Energy Services,
L.L.C. ("ABC") and John Smith ("Customer"). This Agreement shall be effective as of the date signed by ABC and indicated as the
"Effective Date" on ABC’s signature block hereto and not prior thereto. ABC and Customer may be individually referred to as "Party"
or collectively referred to as "Parties." The Parties agree to the following:

 
Purchase and Sale; Services

 
ABC shall sell and Customer shall purchase and receive electric energy on a firm basis for Customer’s facilities identified on Exhibit A
hereto. ABC shall manage all electric energy requirements for Customer, including scheduling and balancing for electric energy. The
electric energy will be delivered to a point or points on the transmission system operated by PJM, the regional transmission
organization ("RTO"). Delivery to meters corresponding to each delivery point for service with ComEd ("Utility") for service addresses
and account numbers specified on the Exhibit A hereto will be made by the Utility.

 
Adequate Assurance

 
Should Customer's creditworthiness or financial responsibility become unsatisfactory to ABC at any time, in ABC’s sole discretion,
ABC may request, in writing, security from Customer, including but not limited to a deposit, satisfactory to ABC. Customer shall fulfill
such request within three (3) business days.

 
Default

 
An Event of Default, as used herein, shall mean: (1) the failure of Customer to make, when due, any payment due hereunder; (2)
Customer’s failure to perform or comply with any term of this agreement; (3) Customer makes an assignment or any general
arrangement for the benefit of creditors; (4) Customer files a petition or otherwise commences, authorizes, or acquiesces to the
commencement of a proceeding or cause of action with respect to it under any bankruptcy proceeding or similar laws for the
protection of creditors, or has such petition filed against it; (5) Customer otherwise becomes insolvent or is unable to pay its debts as
they come due; or (6) Customer fails to provide adequate assurance as provided in the preceding section. ABC reserves the right, in
its sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement at any time, without prior notice, if an Event of Default occurs.

 
Market Structure

 
In the event of any changes to any tariffs, rules, ordinances, statutes, laws, regulations, changes in methods of calculations, or
procedures of Customer's Utility, or of the RTO and electric power transmission networks used by ABC and/or ABC’s suppliers to
deliver electricity to Customer that increase ABC’s cost of providing service hereunder, then ABC may pass through such cost
increase to Customer. If ABC determines, in its sole discretion, that such changes prevent ABC from effectively or economically
performing under this agreement, then ABC may terminate this agreement upon 30 days written notice.

 
Term

 
Service shall commence on the first meter read date after ABC has received notice that the Utility has completed its processing and
has accepted the delivery service request. Service shall not commence any earlier than the meter read in September, 2015, (as
defined by ComEd) (hereinafter "Start Month").

 
This agreement shall remain in effect for twelve months from the Start Month, ending on the last meter read date of said twelfth
month (hereinafter the "Anniversary Month") for the accounts (the "Initial Term"). If Customer executes an Exhibit B at any time that
includes a term that goes beyond the then-current Anniversary Month for all other accounts (as determined in this Electric Sales
Agreement), then the current term for all accounts shall be extended until the next Anniversary Month.

 
Upon the expiration of the Initial Term, and any renewals or extensions thereof, this agreement shall automatically renew for a period
of 12 months (the "Renewal Term"), unless the agreement is terminated by either party with written notice (said notice must be
provided directly from the party, not its agents or any other third party) provided at least 30 days, but not more than 60 days, prior to
the end of the then current term.

 
Pricing

 
Customer agrees to purchase from ABC on a firm basis 100% of Customer’s electricity usage at all facilities identified on Exhibit A, at
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the price and on the terms outlined herein.
 

During any period of time after the Start Month, if ABC and Customer do not have one or more executed Exhibit B Transaction
Confirmations or Pricing Offers in effect for all of the facilities identified on Exhibit A hereto, then the Default Price (as defined below)
shall apply to all facilities not covered by a current Exhibit B or Pricing Offer for the relevant periods.
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At least 30 days prior to the end of any term, ABC may in its sole discretion provide Customer a Pricing Offer (as used herein, a
Pricing Offer shall mean a written notice to Customer of proposed changes, amendments, deletions or additions to the terms of this
Agreement including but not limited to changes in price). Customer shall have ten (10) business days to reject the Pricing Offer in
writing. Customer’s failure to reject the Pricing Offer in writing within ten (10) days shall be deemed an acceptance by Customer of
the terms included in the Pricing Offer.

 
The Default Price (per kWh) shall be calculated as follows: the PJM day ahead locational marginal price for ComEd Zone (as defined
by PJM) plus $0.007 per kWh for all quantities of actual usage, plus distribution and transmission losses at the same price per kWh,
plus RTO charges, transmission charges, ancillary charges, capacity charges, RPS charges (at the rate posted by the ICC prior to the
planning year covered by the applicable term,) and delivery charges (RTO, transmission, ancillary, capacity, and delivery charges
shall be passed through to Customer at ABC’s cost, excluding any credits back to ABC, the benefits of which have been considered
by ABC in determining the price; in the event actual costs for Customer are not available then ABC shall use its best efforts to
estimate the actual cost) (collectively hereinafter "Default Price").

 
The rates identified herein apply only to electric supply to the Utility, not to the other charges associated with Utility delivery.
Customer is responsible for all charges relating to delivering electricity to Customer’s account(s).

 
Metering

 
In the event Customer utilizes both interval and non-interval, summary-type, meters, ABC will shape the usage from the non-interval
meters to match the load curve of the interval meters, and bill according to this shaping model. Lighting meters shall not be utilized to
determine usage shape.

 
Generation
Customer warrants and represents that Customer does not own any generation behind the meter. In the event that Customer installs
or otherwise utilizes any behind the meter generation during the term of this Agreement, ABC hereby reserves the right to terminate
this Agreement and charge to Customer any costs, losses and damages, direct or indirect, incurred by ABC as a result thereof.

 
Demand Side Management

 
In the event Customer enrolls in or participates in any utility, RTO or independently sponsored demand side management programs,
ABC hereby reserves the right to terminate this Agreement and charge to Customer any costs, losses and damages, direct or indirect,
incurred by ABC as a result thereof. Customer hereby grants to ABC a right of first refusal, granting ABC the right: (1) to provide
demand side management services to Customer on the same terms and conditions as included in any bona fide offer from any third
party; and (2) in the event ABC has elected to terminate this Agreement, to enter into a new electric supply agreement on the same
terms and conditions as included in any bona fide offer from any third party.

 
Material Change

 
In the event of a material change in Customer usage parameters - including, but not limited to, installation or removal of electric
consuming equipment, increased or decreased hours of operation, shutdown/closure/sale of accounts/facilities served hereunder, or
other changes that would have an adverse impact on ABC or cause an increase in ABC’s costs to supply electricity hereunder, then
ABC may in its sole discretion either terminate this agreement (a "Material Change Termination") or pass through those costs to
Customer unless Customer's account is included within the Residential rate class as defined by the Utility in which case no costs
would be pass through. Weather events shall not be considered, or result in, a Material Change hereunder. As used herein, the term
Material Change shall mean usage during any calendar month that either exceeds historical usage (as used in this clause, historical
usage shall mean usage during the year prior to the original execution date of this Agreement) for the same calendar month by 20%
or more, or is less than historical usage for the same calendar month by 20% or more. In the event historical usage cannot be
determined, then Material Change shall be determined by ABC in its sole discretion.

 
Force Majeure Pricing Event

 
In certain circumstances an event of force majeure (as defined below) may disrupt ABC’s purchased supply and/or financial hedging
instruments used to provide fixed pricing service hereunder, even though Customer may continue to receive electric supply from the
Utility. In such cases, the fixed pricing rate shall be suspended throughout the duration of the force majeure event, and the variable
pricing rate defined below shall apply to all metered quantities consumed by Customer hereunder during the force majeure event.
The variable pricing rate shall equal ABC’s actual cost to supply electricity to the accounts identified on Exhibit A, plus a fixed charge
of $0.01/kWh. ABC’s actual costs shall be determined based on real-time locational marginal prices for energy, congestion and
losses, and also all costs incurred by ABC for capacity, RTO, transmission, ancillary services, RPS, and regulatory compliance
requirements. If tariff costs are not available due to market rates, then costs will be reasonably estimated.
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Force Majeure
 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this agreement, except for the obligation to make payments due hereunder, the
obligations of a party shall be suspended to the extent the party is unable to carryout its obligation as a result of force majeure. Force
majeure means an event or events outside the control of the claiming party, which the claiming party is unable to overcome or avoid
by exercise of due diligence. Force majeure shall include, without limitation: a condition resulting in the curtailment of power supply or
interruption or curtailment of transmission on the electric transmission and/or distribution system; restraint by court order; action or
non action by, or inability to obtain necessary authorizations or approvals from any government agency or authority; war, acts of God,
fire, terrorism, or flood. If a party hereunder claims it is unable to perform due to force majeure, and such period of non-performance
exceeds 30 days, then the non-claiming party may terminate this Agreement or any Exhibit B Transaction Confirmation without
penalty or default upon thirty days written notice.
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Billing and Payment - See Exhibit A

 
Warranty

 
WITH THE EXCEPTION OF ANY WARRANTY EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN, ABC MAKES NO WARRANTY OF ANY KIND,
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY
AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

 
Indemnification, Limitation of Liability, and Performance

 
ABC shall indemnify Customer for any losses, damages, or costs, which result from ABC’s failure to comply with the terms of this
agreement or as a result of any negligence on the part of ABC. ABC shall not indemnify Customer in the event (1) Customer does not
comply with the terms of this agreement or (2) there is an interruption or cessation of deliveries of electricity, resulting from equipment
failure, mechanical difficulties, or if there is an interruption or cessation of deliveries of electricity as a result of force majeure or other
such conditions.

 
Customer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless ABC for any losses, damages, or costs, which result from Customer’s failure to
comply with the terms of this agreement or as a result of any negligence on the part of the Customer. Customer recognizes that ABC
must purchase and/or contract to purchase financial hedging instruments and/or physical electricity supplies necessary to supply
Customer with electricity under this agreement. In the event of Customer’s breach of this agreement, an Event of Default, either
party’s early termination (unless Customer's account is included within the Residential rate class as defined by Utility in which case a
$50.00 termination penalty will apply) of this agreement pursuant to any provision of this agreement, or a Material Change
Termination, then Customer shall pay to ABC an Early Termination Fee plus any other damages available to ABC under law, equity,
or contract, in addition to paying all outstanding invoices. The Early Termination Fee shall consist of: (1) ABC’s losses and costs
incurred in liquidating its financial hedging instruments and terminating or liquidating its physical supply purchase obligations; and (2)
an amount representing the positive difference (if any) between the price in effect at the time of the early termination less the forward
market price (based upon a commercially reasonable estimate by ABC), multiplied by the forecasted quantities of usage for the
remainder of the term (forecasted quantities shall be based upon historical usage, as that term is defined in the Material Change
section); and (3) in the event of a Material Change Termination, an amount representing the positive difference (if any) between the
market price during the period in which the Material Change occurred less the price in effect during that same period, multiplied by
either (a) in the event of a Material Change Termination resulting from excess usage , the quantity of usage in excess of 120% of the
historical usage (as that term is defined in the Material Change section), or (b) in the event of a Material Change Termination
resulting from a shortage in usage, the quantity of usage representing the positive difference (if any) between 80% of the historical
usage (as that term is defined in the Material Change section) and the actual usage.

 
ABC SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL OR PUNITIVE
DAMAGES, OR FOR LOST PROFITS ARISING OUT OF, OR RELATING TO, ANY ACTION OR FAILURE TO ACT UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT WHETHER OR NOT ARISING FROM EITHER PARTY(S) NEGLIGENCE OR FAULT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

 
Forward Contract

 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that this agreement constitutes a forward contract within the meaning of the United States
Bankruptcy Code (the "Code"), and that ABC is a forward contract merchant under this agreement within the meaning of the Code.

 
Miscellaneous

 
This agreement, including the exhibit(s), constitutes the entire agreement of the parties for the sale and purchase of electric energy
provided for herein and may be changed only by an agreement in writing. In the event of a conflict between this agreement and the
Exhibit A or Exhibit B Transaction Confirmation, the Exhibit A or Exhibit B Transaction Confirmation shall control. This agreement
shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois without regard to conflict of law
principles. Only ABC may assign this agreement. This agreement shall not be construed against either party by reason of its
preparation. Any waiver of any terms of this agreement shall not diminish the future enforceability of this agreement. Customer agrees
not to disclose any term of this agreement to a third-party (other than Customer's affiliates, officers, directors, employees, lenders,
counsel or accountants) except as necessary for Customer to perform its obligations herein or to comply with any applicable law,
order, regulation or rule. If any provision of this agreement is held to be invalid, its invalidity shall not affect the validity of any other
provision of this agreement. Customer shall be responsible for any and all costs, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees and court
costs, incurred by ABC in order to enforce the terms of this agreement.

 
Notices

 
Except as provided herein to the contrary, any notice, request, demand, statement, bill or payment provided for in this agreement, or
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any notice which a party may desire to give to the other, shall be in writing and shall be considered duly delivered when received if
sent by facsimile, same or next day delivery service, or as of the third business day after the postmark date when mailed by ordinary
mail to the other party at the following address:
 
 
ABC Energy Services, L.L.C.
Notices and correspondence, parcel deliveries

Customer/notices and correspondence

  
ABC Energy Services, L.L.C. John Smith
  
  
Payments: Billings and statements (if different)
  
 same as mailing
 
This agreement is effective pending final credit approval by ABC Energy Services, L.L.C.
 
In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the date herein below first written.
 
Seller: ABC Energy Services, L.L.C. Customer: John Smith
By: By:
Print Name: Print Name:
Title: Title:
Effective Date: Date:
Base Agreement #12345  
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Exhibit A : Accounts to be Served on ComEd
 
 
Customer Name: John Smith Agreement #: 12345
 MAILING INFORMATION BILLING INFORMATION

ATTNJohn Smith same as mailing
STREET  

CITY/STATE/ZIP
CONTACT PHONE Day/Evening 312-555-1212
CONTACT EMAIL  
 
 
Location Name

 
Account Number

 
Service Address

 
City

 
State

 
Zip Code

 
UCB(Y/N)

 0123456789 555 W Main st suite 1 Chicago Illinois 60608 Y
 
 
Billing and Payment:
 
This billing payment provision supersedes, replaces and amends the Billing and Payment provision in Electric Sales Agreement.
 
Dual Billing Option:
 
If customer elects Dual Billing and account(s) are eligible for Dual Billing, Customer’s payment will be due on the date stated on
ABC’s bill. A late payment charge of one and a half percent (1.5%) per month or the maximum lawful rate, whichever is lower, shall be
imposed on any past due balance. In the event that Customer requests a billing adjustment, Customer is obligated to pay all other
amounts as invoiced. Upon reconciliation of a proposed billing adjustment Customer shall pay any additional amounts due to ABC.
 
Utility Consolidated Billing Option
 
If customer elects Utility Consolidated Billing (UCB) and account(s) are eligible for UCB, Customer will receive one single bill from
LDC for both the ABC energy charges and the LDC delivery charges, including taxes and fees. Customer is responsible for paying
each monthly bill to LDC in full by the due date stated on the invoice. Should the Utility cease providing consolidated billing for your
account ABC Energy will bill you directly. You acknowledge that the Utility may provide ABC with your billing and payment
information.
 
Regardless of billing option, Customer is responsible for any and all taxes, fees, licenses, penalties or charges ("taxes") imposed on
or with respect to the electricity at or after the title transfer point(s), customer shall provide evidence of such exemption to ABC. Title
to all electricity sold hereunder shall transfer from ABC to Customer at the Utility interface with the bulk electricity transmission
system. Additionally, ABC may bill estimates in advance of meter reads should Customer’s meter be cycle read, or if measurements
of actual usage are not received timely from the utility. Customer agrees to accept the measurements as determined by the Utility for
purpose of accounting for the amount of power and energy provided by us under this contract.

 
ABC can elect switch billing options under this Agreement at ABC’s sole discretion or if the customer is deemed ineligible for Dual or
Utility Consolidated Billing.
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Exhibit B: Fixed Power "ALL IN

ABC Energy Services, L.L.C. Electric
Sales Transaction Confirmation

 
Customer: John Smith
Base Agreement: 12345
 
AGREEMENT
 
This Exhibit B Transaction Confirmation, by and between ABC Energy Services L.L.C. ("ABC") and John Smith ("Customer"), effective
as of the date signed by ABC and indicated in the signature block hereof as "Effective Date", is made a part of the base Electric Sales
Agreement, number 22169 (agreement ID) between ABC and Customer. ABC shall sell and Customer shall purchase from ABC on a
firm basis 100% of Customer’s electric energy for the accounts identified below, at the price and on the terms identified herein.
Customer indicates below which accounts, if they meet ComEd and ABC Energy's requirements, should be placed on ComEd's
Utility Consolidated Billing (UCB) program.
 
 
ACCOUNTS
 
This transaction Agreement shall apply to the following accounts in the Commonwealth Edison territory in Illinois ("Accounts").
 
Account
Number

Price
($/kWh)

Start Date * Term Service Address City Zip UCB(Y/N)

0123456789 $0.07743 9/1/2015 12 Months 555 W Main st, #1 Chicago 60608 Y
 
* Anticipated Start Date, based on Customer’s meter read cycle, subject to change by ComEd.
 
TERM
 
This Exhibit B shall supersede any other exhibit currently in effect for the Accounts identified in this Transaction Confirmation. Service
for the Accounts identified in this Transaction Confirmation shall commence on the first meter read date for the Accounts in the month
of September (as determined by the Utility), but in no event shall service commence prior to the first meter read date after the Utility
completes its processing and has accepted the delivery service request for the accounts. This Exhibit B Transaction Confirmation
shall remain in effect for each Account through the Utility’s scheduled meter read date for each respective Account in September
2016. If the term of this Exhibit B goes beyond the then-current Anniversary Month for all other accounts (as determined in the
Electric Sales Agreement), then the current term for all accounts identified on Exhibit A to the Electric Sales Agreement shall be
extended until the next Anniversary Month.
 
PRICE
 
Metered usage is multiplied by the Price to determine the All In cost.
 
The Price for all electric energy sold hereunder shall be determined as follows:
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Utility distribution charges and applicable regional transmission organization (RTO) charges included on Client’s delivery service bill
from the Utility shall be Client’s responsibility. Client acknowledges that Utility requires more energy to be supplied to the control area
than Client consumes at the meter(s).
 
In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the date herein below first written.
Seller: ABC Energy Services, L.L.C. Customer: John Smith
By: By:
Print Name: Print Name:
Title: Title:
Effective Date: Date:
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Exhibit 10.4
 

ELECTRICITY SALES AGREEMENT SMALL COMMERCIAL
 

This Electricity Sales Agreement, which is comprised of this document and any attached riders or other addenda (collectively,
this “Agreement”), is entered into on the Effective Date (defined below) by and between ABC SUPPLIER 1 (“ABC SUPPLIER”) and
you.

 
AGREEMENT: ABC SUPPLIER agrees to sell to you, and you agree to buy all of your electricity supply requirements from

ABC SUPPLIER, for the following location(s):
 
ACCOUNT NUMBER UTILITY START DATE FIXED RATE ($/kWh) FIXED RATE TERM
123456 Church St,Evanston,IL-
60201

ComEd 8/4/2015 0.07595 33 Months

RATE: The Fixed Rate of $0.07595/kWh includes your electricity supply charges. This Fixed Rate does not include your
Utility’s non-bypassable charges that you will incur.

 
TERM: ABC SUPPLIER will begin providing electricity supply service to you on the first meter read on or after the Start Date

(listed for each location). If for any reason the account number at a location is not able to be enrolled by the Start Date, it shall be
enrolled on the next possible meter read date. For the first 33 months after the Start Date the Fixed Rate will be $0.07595/kWh. You
may rescind this Agreement by contacting ABC SUPPLIER before your enrollment request is submitted to the utility. You will receive
written notice from the utility confirming a switching of your electricity supply to ABC SUPPLIER. You may also rescind this
Agreement and the pending enrollment within ten calendar days after the electric utility processes the enrollment request by
contacting ABC SUPPLIER at ____________________.

 
RENEWAL: Between 30 and 60 days prior to the expiration date of this Agreement ABC SUPPLIER may provide a notice to

you of this Agreement's renewal ("Renewal Notice"). The Renewal Notice will set forth the proposed rate for the renewal term, the
proposed length of the renewal term, and any other proposed changes to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If customer
timely accepts, signs, and returns the Renewal Notice, then the term of this Agreement shall be renewed on the terms in the Renewal
Notice. If Customer does not timely accept, sign, and return the Renewal Notice, then unless Customer notifies ABC SUPPLIER that
customer is terminating this Agreement, ABC SUPPLIER shall provide Customer service on a month-to-month variable price with no
termination fee once that month-to-month service begins.

 
  CONTACT INFORMATION CUSTOMER CONTACT AND BILLING INFORMATION
ABC SUPPLIER
1234 W MAIN St
Chicago, IL 60607
Attention: CFO
Telephone: (800) 123-1234
E-mail: info@ ABC SUPPLIER
Fax: (123) 123-1234

Customer: Abc Customer

Signature: _________________________________
Date 6/22/2015
Address Line 1: 123456 Church St
Address Line 2:
City, State Zip: Evanston, IL- 60201
Contact Phone: 847-123-3214
Contact Email:
    
 
1 Formal name: ABC SUPPLIER llc, an Illinois limited liability company d/b/a “ABC SUPPLIER”
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METHOD OF CONTACT: By providing ABC SUPPLIER with a valid email address you agree to accept all future

communication, including Renewal Notices, electronically.
 
BILLING: You will continue to receive one bill from your Utility for each billing cycle for the electricity supply service provided

by ABC SUPPLIER and the transmission, distribution and other services provided by your Utility, each with taxes thereon. You will
make payment for all of these services directly to your Utility in accordance with the payment terms stated in your Utility’s tariffs.

 
AUTHORIZATION TO CHANGE PROVIDERS: You certify that you have the authority to change electricity supply providers

for the account(s). By accepting this Agreement, you are authorizing ABC SUPPLIER to become your new Retail Electric Supplier.
You authorize ABC SUPPLIER to act as your agent and to work with your Utility to make the switch effective.

 
CUSTOMER INFORMATION RELEASE AUTHORIZATION: By entering into this Agreement, you agree that your Utility may

release to us certain information that we need to provide service to you, including your address, telephone number, account numbers,
historical usage information and peak electricity demand. We will not give or sell your personal information to any unaffiliated party
without your consent unless we are required to do so by law.

 
EARLY TERMINATION FEE: You will not be assessed an early termination fee for terminating this Agreement.
 
TITLE AND TAXES: Title to the electricity sold under this Agreement will pass from ABC SUPPLIER to you when it is

delivered to your Utility. You are responsible for the payment of all transfer, sales or other taxes related to ABC SUPPLIER’S service
under this Agreement.

 
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: ABC SUPPLIER’S liability in connection with this Agreement shall not exceed the amount of

your largest monthly invoice for electricity supply service from ABC SUPPLIER during the twelve (12) months immediately preceding
termination of this Agreement. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED HEREIN, NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE
OTHER FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL (INCLUDING LOST PROFITS OR REVENUES), INCIDENTAL OR
PUNITIVE DAMAGES FOR CLAIMS ARISING HEREUNDER.

 
BINDING EFFECT, ASSIGNMENT: This Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Customer, enforceable

against it in accordance with its terms, except as may be limited by general equitable principles and by bankruptcy, insolvency, or
other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally. This agreement is assignable by ABC SUPPLIER without
your consent subject only to any required regulatory approvals. ABC SUPPLIER will use commercially reasonable efforts to give you
and your Utility thirty (30) days written notice prior to any assignment.

 
DEFAULT: Customer is in default of this contract if one of the these events is not cured within 5 days of notice (i) failure to

make, when due, any payment; or (ii) Making false or misleading statements; or (iii) failure to perform any covenant; or (iv) declaring
Insolvency.

 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION: For questions regarding your electricity supply charges please contact ABC SUPPLIER at 855-

243-7270. For all other questions you should contact your electric utility at 800-334-7661 (ComEd) or 800-755-5000 (Ameren). If your
questions, concerns or complaints are not resolved you may also contact the ICC at 1-800-524-0795.

 
FORCE MAJEURE: ABC SUPPLIER will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide the service under this Agreement,

but we do not guarantee a continuous supply of electricity. Certain Force Majeure events outside of our control may cause
interruptions in service. If a Force Majeure event prevents us from performing our obligations in whole or in part, our performance
shall be excused for the duration of such event, and we will not be liable for damages associated with any delay or failure to perform
as a result thereof. “Force Majeure” shall include, without limitation, sabotage, riots or civil disturbances, acts of God, acts of the
public enemy, acts of vandalism, terrorist acts, natural disasters, explosions, fires, or similarly cataclysmic occurrence, shortage or
unavailability of transmission facilities, nonperformance by your Utility, or any change in law or any other action by a governmental
authority that materially impairs our ability to perform our obligations under this Agreement. We will give you reasonably prompt
notice of any Force Majeure occurrence.

 
CANCELLATION OF EXISTING SERVICE: You are responsible for cancelling any agreements with other electric suppliers

from whom you are purchasing electricity supply service as of the date of this Agreement.
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OTHER PROVISIONS: This Agreement is the entire agreement between the parties with regard to the subject matter of the

Agreement and supersedes all prior agreements, either written or oral. Nothing in this agreement shall create or be construed as
creating any express or implied rights in any person or entity other than you and ABC SUPPLIER. This Agreement is subject to all
valid and applicable legislation and to all present and future orders, rules and regulations of authorities having jurisdiction over the
subject matter hereof. This Agreement shall be governed by Illinois law.
 

ELECTRICITY SALES AGREEMENT (GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS)
 

1. Sales, Term. ABC SUPPLIER will sell to Customer, and Customer will buy from ABC SUPPLIER, electricity to satisfy its
Energy Requirements subject to this Agreement. Customer will provide Customer Information to ABC SUPPLIER and will assist ABC
SUPPLIER in implementing this Agreement. Customer will notify ABC SUPPLIER of any circumstance likely to cause a change to the
Energy Requirements at any Location.

 
In all events, (i) this Agreement will continue in effect until final invoices are paid, and (ii) all obligations of confidentiality,

indemnity, and payment of Taxes will survive termination, but as to confidentiality, for 1 year.
 
2. Billing, Payment, Credit, Taxes. Customer will be billed and will pay pursuant to the Cover Page. All electricity delivered

to a Location is measured pursuant to the EDC’s tariff by the EDC at each Location. Customer agrees that timely and accurate
invoicing is dependent on the EDC and RTO furnishing ABC SUPPLIER information, in the absence of which ABC SUPPLIER may
invoice Customer on estimated data, subject to later adjustment. If Customer disputes an invoice, Customer will pay ABC SUPPLIER
the undisputed amount. Upon resolution, Customer will pay the amount owed with interest at the Interest Rate from the date the
amount was originally due to, but excluding, the date the amount is paid. ABC SUPPLIER’S obligation to sell electricity to Customer
is conditioned upon ABC SUPPLIER’S ongoing review and approval of Customer’s creditworthiness. Customer will, on ABC
SUPPLIER’S request from time to time, (i) provide financial information and (ii) if Customer’s creditworthiness declines, provide
performance assurance, all reasonably satisfactory to ABC SUPPLIER. Customer is responsible for and indemnifies ABC SUPPLIER
for all Taxes arising from or measured by electricity sold or services provided or ABC SUPPLIER receipts from the electricity sold or
services provided, whether the Law imposes the Taxes on ABC SUPPLIER or Customer. ABC SUPPLIER may collect Taxes from
Customer by including them on the ABC SUPPLIER invoice. ABC SUPPLIER will recognize a lawful sales tax exemption on a
prospective basis only after Customer provides proper documentation to ABC SUPPLIER. If Customer is due a Tax refund because of
ABC SUPPLIER failure to timely recognize valid exemption documentation, ABC SUPPLIER may credit the overpaid Tax to
Customer’s account. Customer is responsible for petitioning the taxing authority for all other Tax refunds.

 
3. Consumption Change. Customer will promptly notify ABC SUPPLIER in writing (a “Notice”) of any event or circumstance

that is likely to cause a significant change to the load at any Location(s) (“Load Change”), including Customer’s plans for new
construction, facility replacement or equipment modification, planned closures, applications for new construction permits, or new
environmental limits. Upon receipt of a Notice or upon the occurrence of a Load Change, ABC SUPPLIER may notify Customer (an
“Adjustment Notice”) of adjusted Benchmark Quantities and Contract Price reflecting the incremental effect of the change (the
“Adjustment”). Customer may accept the Adjustment by executing the Adjustment Notice and returning it to ABC SUPPLIER within 5
business days of its date, in which case the Benchmark Quantities and Contract Price will be adjusted accordingly effective as of the
next succeeding meter read date after ABC SUPPLIER receipt of the executed Adjustment Notice. If Customer does not timely
execute and return the Adjustment Notice, the Benchmark Quantities and Contract Price will not be adjusted, and ABC SUPPLIER
will have the right to cancel this Agreement upon 30 days prior notice to Customer. If ABC SUPPLIER cancels this Agreement, then
Customer will pay ABC SUPPLIER Termination Damages and remain liable to pay ABC SUPPLIER timely for all charges for
electricity sold until each Location is Switched. Any election by ABC SUPPLIER not to exercise its rights under this Section 3 will not
preclude ABC SUPPLIER exercise of those rights at a later date.

 
4. Default. “Non-Defaulting Party” may establish a date (the “Early Termination Date”) on which this Agreement will be

terminated upon the occurrence of any of the following defaults by “Defaulting Party,” if the default is not cured within 5 business
days after notice (except for an Insolvency Event or the failure to provide performance assurance which are immediate defaults):

 
(i) Failure to make, when due, any payment; or
(ii) Any representation or warranty proves to have been false or misleading in any material respect; or
(iii) Failure to perform any covenant; or
(iv) An Insolvency Event occurs.
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No waiver by a Party of a default will be construed as a waiver of any other default. If Non-Defaulting Party terminates this

Agreement, (i) Customer, or if allowed by Law, ABC SUPPLIER, as Non- Defaulting Party, may Switch Customer’s service to a BESP
, and (ii) Defaulting Party will pay the Termination Damages to Non-Defaulting Party. The Parties agree that if Customer causes a
default switching away one or more Locations to another BESP prior to the expiration of the Initial Term, the Early Termination Date
will be the earliest date a Location is Switched. Regardless of which Party is Defaulting Party, if this Agreement is terminated,
Customer will remain liable to pay ABC SUPPLIER timely for all charges for electricity sold until each Location is Switched. Defaulting
Party will pay the Termination Damages within 15 business days of receipt of notice and it will accrue interest at the Interest Rate
from the Early Termination Date to, but excluding, the date paid. On the date due, each Party will pay to the other Party all additional
amounts payable by it after all amounts have been netted and aggregated with the Termination Damages. In case of dispute, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to attorney’s fees and collection costs incurred in connection with enforcement efforts.

 
5. Limitation of Liabilities. Liabilities not excused by reason of Force Majeure or otherwise will be limited to direct actual

damages. ABC SUPPLIER will not be liable to Customer or any third party for consequential, incidental, punitive, exemplary or
indirect damages. ABC SUPPLIER is not liable for interruptions to, or shortages of, electricity supply, nor is it liable for any resulting
associated loss or damage. These limitations apply without regard to the cause of any liability or damage.

 
6. Representations. Customer represents that (i) it is a commercial user of electricity and has entered into this Agreement

solely for related non-speculative purposes, (ii) it will not resell any of the electricity it buys from ABC SUPPLIER, (iii) it has
experience in business matters that enable it to enter into and perform this Agreement, (iv) no Location will have generation that is
synchronously connected to the EDC (the Parties acknowledge that synchronously connected generation does not include
emergency back-up power generation), and (v) this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Customer, enforceable
against it in accordance with its terms, except as may be limited by general equitable principles and by bankruptcy, insolvency, or
other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally. The Parties make no representations or warranties
except those expressly stated in these terms, and disclaim all other warranties, express or implied, including
merchantability, conformity to models or samples, and fitness for a particular purpose.

 
2 02.03.14
 
7. Force Majeure. If a Party is unable because of Force Majeure to perform its obligations and it notifies the other Party as

soon as practicable, then its obligations (other than payment for energy received, and performance of obligations incurred, before the
Force Majeure event) will be suspended for the duration of the Force Majeure event. Customer agrees that under no circumstances
will ABC SUPPLIER be required, because of a Force Majeure event, to supply electricity except to the Locations.

 
8. Law, Waivers, Confidentiality, Documentation. This Agreement will be governed by Illinois law, without regard to its

conflict of law principles. The Uniform Commercial Code of Illinois applies to this Agreement and electricity is deemed a "good". If
either Party or its activities related to this Agreement are affected by any Law enacted after the Effective Date (“Change in Law”) that
makes performance of this Agreement unenforceable or illegal, then either Party may terminate this Agreement on notice to the other
Party, without any obligation or other liability (other than payment for energy received, and performance of obligations incurred,
before the Change in Law). If a Change in Law occurs relating to the wholesale or retail electricity market in the RTO resulting in new
or modified fees, costs of performance, or other charges being incurred by ABC SUPPLIER and/or other RTO market participants,
then to the extent incurred by ABC SUPPLIER, all of the incremental amounts may be reasonably allocated and billed to Customer as
an authorized charge or adjustment to the Contract Price. Neither Party will disclose these terms to a third party (other than a Party’s
and its affiliates’ employees, lenders, counsel, permitted assignees, consultants, accountants, or prospective purchasers who have
agreed to confidentiality), except in order to comply with Law. If a provision becomes unlawful or unenforceable, the other provisions
will remain in effect. Except as provided in the Cover Page, only a written amendment signed by the Parties is enforceable.
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9. Assignment. Neither Party may assign this Agreement without the other Party’s prior written consent, which consent may

not be unreasonably withheld, except that ABC SUPPLIER may, without Customer’s consent, (i) as part of any financing or other
financial arrangements, assign, sell or pledge this Agreement or its accounts, revenues, or proceeds, or (ii) assign this Agreement to
an affiliate of ABC SUPPLIER, to any person or entity succeeding to all or a substantial portion of the assets of ABC SUPPLIER, or to
a certified RES, in which case ABC SUPPLIER will have no further obligations for future performance other than payment of amounts
owing. There are no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement.

 
10. Customer Acknowledgement. Customer acknowledges that Electricity prices may be subject to substantial volatility

based on economic conditions fuel prices and other factors, and that past results regarding electricity products are not necessarily an
indication of future results.

 
11. Agency. Customer hereby grants ABC SUPPLIER the authority to contract and deal with third parties (e.g., BESPs and

RTOs) to accomplish the terms and provisions in this Agreement. Such grant is limited to the scope of the immediately preceding
sentence.

 
12. Notices. All notices, requests, and invoices must be furnished in writing and delivered by regular mail (including

registered or certified mail, return receipt requested), electronic mail (confirmed receipt), overnight carrier, facsimile, or hand delivery.
 
13. Definitions. The term “including” means including, without limitation. All internal references are to this Agreement unless

stated otherwise.
 
“Actual Consumption” means the electricity measured or reported by the EDC or estimated by ABC SUPPLIER for each

Location.
 
“Adjusted Consumption” means the product of Actual Consumption multiplied by the Loss Factor multiplied by (1 minus the

Marginal Loss De-ration Factor).
 
“Ancillary Services Cost” means, for each Location, all charges assessed by an RTO for services necessary to maintain

reliable operation of the transmission system to support transmission of electricity from the source of generation to the points of
demand.

 
“Basic Electric Service Provider” or “BESP” means a RES or EDC that provides electric service to Customers within a

EDC’s service territory.
 
“Benchmark Quantity” means Customer’s expected monthly kWh electricity consumption for the Term based on Customer

Information and the 12 months of electricity consumption by Customer before the Effective Date, or for new facilities, Customer
Information and electricity consumption of comparable facilities, each as may be adjusted pursuant to this Agreement. The Parties
agree that the Benchmark Quantity is a reasonable estimate of electricity consumption.

 
“Capacity Auction Price” or “CAP” means, in any calendar month, the capacity price in effect for the then-current Planning

Year, established by the RTO as a result of its periodic capacity auctions. Price changes may become effective as of the first meter
read date after the start of each Planning Year. The CAP for each Location is the CAP for the Locational Deliverability Area (as
defined in the RTO tariff) in which the Location is situated. If the CAP becomes unavailable or is not in effect during a calendar month
in which it is required, ABC SUPPLIER and Customer agree to promptly negotiate a mutual satisfactory alternate capacity price
(“Alternate Capacity Price”). During any period in which an Alternative Capacity Price is necessary, until the Alternative Capacity
Price is established, the last valid and effective CAP shall continue to be the CAP.

 
“Customer Information” means information that accurately substantiates Customer’s Energy Requirements forming a basis

for the Contract Price and Benchmark Quantity.
 
“Daily DA Op Reserve Rate” means the rate established by the RTO for the Day Ahead Op Reserve Charge in $/kWh,

published each Operating Day. If the calculation of Daily DA Op Reserve Rate is discontinued or is re-constituted by the RTO in such
a manner as to render it unusable for the purposes intended by the Parties, Customer and ABC SUPPLIER agree to substitute an
alternative mechanism that most closely reflects the Daily DA Op Reserve Rate as it was constituted at the time of execution of this
Agreement.

 
“EDC” (Electric Delivery Company) means the entities that have custody of the electricity sold and purchased and own or

control electric transmission or distribution equipment for transmitting or distributing electricity to a Location.
 
“EDC Zone” means an area within the RTO Control Area, as set forth in the RTO Open Access Transmission Tariff and the

Reliability Assurance Agreement, as may be amended hereafter.
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“Energy Cost” is the charge for costs included in the Zonal Day Ahead Locational Marginal Price.
 
“Energy Requirements” means electricity equal to 100% of the actual electricity requirements of Location(s) for the Delivery

Term, not to exceed the EDC’s facilities’ capabilities or contravene Law.
 
“FERC Order 745 Cost” means any charges imposed by the RTO on load served by ABC SUPPLIER in accordance with

complying with the provisions of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") in Order No. 745 (18 CFR Part 35 (March 15,
2011). Any modifications or conditions to the treatment of FERC Order 745 Costs under the RTO tariff or otherwise shall be deemed
a Change in Law pursuant to the Laws, Waivers, Confidentiality, Documentation paragraph of the General Terms and Conditions of
this Electricity Sales Agreement.

 
“Force Majeure” means an event not within the reasonable control of the Party claiming suspension, not caused by the

negligence of that Party, and which, by the exercise of due diligence, that Party is unable to overcome or obtain a commercially
reasonable substitute therefore. Force Majeure includes a Force Majeure occurring with respect to the EDC, a suspension,
curtailment, or service interruption by the EDC, or acts of terrorism, civil insurrection, war, or acts of God.

 
“Insolvency Event” means making an assignment or arrangement for the benefit of creditors, filing a petition, or authorizing

or acquiescing in the commencement of a proceeding under Law for protection of creditors, or having a similar petition filed against it,
or otherwise becoming insolvent or unable to pay debts as due.

 
“Interest Rate” means a rate of 1.5% per month, but the Interest Rate charged and collected will never exceed in the

aggregate, taking into account all payments constituting interest under applicable Law, the maximum rate permitted by applicable
Law.

 
“Law” means any law, statute, regulation, rule, protocol, exchange rule, decision, writ, order, decree or judgment, or any

interpretation of any of them by any court, agency, or instrumentality having jurisdiction, including the RTO.
 
“Location(s)” means Customer’s facilities described in the Cover Page.
 
“Loss Factor Cost” is the charge for adjusting the Actual Consumption at each Location to account for the loss factors

established by EDC and published in the EDC tariff, as adjusted from time to time by EDC. If the Loss Factor is no longer published
in the EDC tariff, Customer and ABC SUPPLIER agree to substitute an alternative mechanism to determine the Loss Factor.

 
“MISO” means Midwest Independent Transmission Operator, Inc.
 
“Marginal Loss De-ration Factor” means the value by which Actual Consumption at each Location will be adjusted to

account for system marginal losses in conjunction with the Loss Factor. The Marginal Loss De-ration Factor is computed hourly by
the RTO for each zone. If the calculation of the Marginal Loss De-ration Factor is discontinued or is re-constituted by the RTO in such
a manner as to render it unusable for the purposes intended by the Parties, Customer and ABC SUPPLIER agree to substitute an
alternative mechanism that most closely reflects the Marginal Loss De-ration Factor as it was constituted at the time of execution of
this Agreement.

 
“Network Integration Transmission Obligation” means for each Location, the demand obligation (kilowatt, “kW”) used by

the RTO to determine ABC SUPPLIER’s daily transmission requirement. Any change made by the RTO to the demand obligation
may become effective the first meter read following the change. If calculation of Network Integration Transmission Obligation is
discontinued or re-constituted by the RTO in a manner as to render it unusable for the purposes intended by the Parties, Customer
and ABC SUPPLIER agree to substitute an alternative demand obligation mechanism that most closely reflects the Network
Integration Transmission Obligation as it was constituted at the time of execution of this Agreement.
 

6

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
“Network Integration Transmission Service (NITS) Rate” means for each Location, the rate set by the RTO to compensate

the applicable EDC for services to allow an entity using transmission service to integrate, economically dispatch, and regulate its
network resources to serve its network load in a manner comparable to that in which that EDC utilizes its transmission system to
serve its native load customers, expressed in ($/kW-day). Any change made by the RTO to the NITS rate may become effective the
first meter read following the change.

 
“NITS Cost” means for each Location an amount equal to the product of the Network Integration Transmission Service Rate

and the Network Integration Transmission Obligation for each day of Actual Consumption.
 
“Op Reserve Charge” means, for each billing period, the daily sum of the hourly Adjusted Consumption multiplied by the

Daily DA Op Reserve Rate. For purposes of calculating the Op Reserve Charge, all consumption is subject to any applicable
adjustments for losses and taxes.

 
“Operating Day” means the 24-hour period of any day from hour ending 1 (one) to hour ending 0 (zero) as defined by the

RTO.
 
“Party” and collectively, “Parties”, means ABC SUPPLIER and Customer.
 
“PJM” means PJM Interconnection, L.L.C
 
“Planning Year” is defined by PJM and MISO as June 1 through the following May 31.
 
“Public Utilities Tax” means Taxes imposed with respect to gross receipts from sale or use of Energy and utility service that

vendors of Energy or utility service are required to pay under applicable state law.
 
"Renewable Compliance Cost" is the amount determined by calculating the product of Customer's kWh usage and the

amount that ABC SUPPLIER incurs (calculated in cents per kWh) in connection with the obligations of the Customer and/or ABC
SUPPLIER to comply with all renewable energy requirements imposed by any governmental body.

 
“RES” means Retail Electric Supplier.
 
“RTO” means Regional Transmission Organization, either PJM or MISO as applicable to the Locations.
 
“Switch” means an authorized change in Customer’s electricity supplier.
 
“Switch Date” means for each Location the date that all actions have been taken by the EDC and RTO (i) for ABC

SUPPLIER to sell electricity to Customer and for Customer to receive same, or (ii) for another BESP to sell electricity to Customer and
for Customer to receive same, as the context requires.

 
“Taxes” means all federal, state, and local taxes, fees, governmental charges, and assessments, presently or hereafter

imposed on Customer as purchaser of Energy, on ABC SUPPLIER as seller of Energy, or on the Energy Transactions, including but
not limited to state Public Utilities Taxes, state Electricity Taxes, state Distribution Taxes, Municipality taxes, State taxes, franchise
taxes, municipal administrative fees on RESs; and generation, utility, regulatory, Btu, or electricity taxes and assessments, but
excluding taxes imposed on net income.

 
“Termination Damages” means (i) where Customer is Non- Defaulting Party, the positive difference, if any, obtained by

subtracting (a) the present value of this Agreement had it not been terminated, using the Benchmark Quantity applicable to the
Locations for the remaining period of the Term (“Terminated Contract”) from (b) the present value of a replacement contract, using
the Benchmark Quantity applicable to the Locations and market prices that are reasonably expected to be available in the market for
the remaining period of the Term (“Replacement Contract”); and (ii) where ABC SUPPLIER is Non-Defaulting Party, the positive
difference, if any, obtained by subtracting (a) the present value of a Replacement Contract from (b) the present value of the
Terminated Agreement, in each case plus Non-Defaulting Party’s reasonable costs associated with the valuation of the replacement
contract.
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“Unforced Capacity Cost” is the amount determined by calculating the product of the Capacity Auction Price multiplied by

the Unforced Capacity Obligation (kW) for each day of Actual Consumption.
 
“Unforced Capacity Obligation” means, for each Location, the demand obligation (kW) used by the RTO to determine ABC

SUPPLIER’s daily capacity requirement. Any change made by the RTO to the demand obligation may become effective the first
meter read following the change. If calculation of Unforced Capacity Obligation is discontinued or re-constituted by the RTO in a
manner as to render it unusable for the purposes intended by the Parties, Customer and ABC SUPPLIER agree to substitute an
alternative demand obligation mechanism that most closely reflects the Unforced Capacity Obligation, respectively, as it was
constituted at the time of execution of this Agreement.

 
“Zonal Locational Marginal Price” or “Zonal LMP” means the hourly integrated market clearing marginal price for energy for

the Location’s EDC Zone, expressed in $/kWh as defined and published by the RTO for the real time market in PJM and MISO. If the
calculation and publication of Zonal LMPs is discontinued or is re-constituted by RTO in such a manner as to render it unusable for
the purposes intended by the Parties, Customer and ABC SUPPLIER agree to substitute an alternative mechanism that most closely
reflects the Zonal LMP as it was constituted at the time of execution of this Agreement.

 
“Zonal Day Ahead Locational Marginal Price” or “Zonal DA LMP” means the hourly integrated market clearing marginal

price for energy for the Location’s EDC Zone in $/kWh as defined and published by the RTO for the day ahead market in PJM and
MISO. It is the Parties’ intent to use Zonal DA LMP to track the actual hourly market prices for Energy available to serve Locations
located within a EDC Zone. If the calculation and publication of Zonal DA LMP is discontinued or is re-constituted by the RTO in such
a manner as to render it unusable for the purposes intended by the parties, Customer and ABC SUPPLIER agree to substitute an
alternative mechanism that most closely reflects the Zonal DA LMP as it was constituted at the time of execution of this Agreement.
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Exhibit 31.1
 

Certification
 
I, Randall Letcavage, certify that:

 
1. I have reviewed this Form 10-K/A of Premier Holding Corporation (the "Company") for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31,

2013;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

 
4. I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-

15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
Company and have:

 
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under

my supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under my supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

Company's most recent fiscal quarter (the Company's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5. I have disclosed, based on the most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Company's auditors

and the audit committee of the Company's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the

Company's internal control over financial reporting.
 
Date: July 14, 2015 Premier Holding Corporation

 
/s/ Randall Letcavage
Randall Letcavage
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chairman of the Board
of Directors, Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer.

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



Exhibit 32.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 
 

In connection with the amendment to annual report of Premier Holding Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), the undersigned principal executive and
financial officer of Premier hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

 
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company.
 

Date: July 14, 2015
 

/s/ Randall Letcavage
Randall Letcavage
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chairman of the Board of Directors
Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial and Accounting Officer.

 

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.


